
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

CABINET 
 
TUESDAY, 23 JUNE 2020 AT 10.00 AM 
 
ROOM CC2 - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 

++Please note that this meeting is taking place remotely++ 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Keith Glazier (Chair)  

Councillors Nick Bennett (Vice Chair), Bill Bentley, Claire Dowling, 
Carl Maynard, Rupert Simmons, Bob Standley and Sylvia Tidy 
 

A G E N D A  
 
1   Minutes of the meeting held on 2 June 2020  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
5   Council Monitoring 2019/20 - End of Year  (Pages 5 - 66) 

Report by Chief Executive 
 

6   Ashdown Forest Trust 2019/20  (Pages 67 - 72) 
Report by Chief Operating Officer 
 

7   Modernising Back Office Systems  (Pages 73 - 88) 
Report by Chief Operating Officer 
 

8   To agree which items are to be reported to the County Council   
 

9   Any other non-exempt items considered urgent by the Chair   
 

10   Exclusion of the Public and Press   
To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting for the remaining agenda 
items on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 
 

11   Modernising Back Office Systems  (Pages 89 - 92) 
Report by Chief Operating Officer 



 

 
12   Any other exempt items considered urgent by the Chair   

 
 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 15 June 2020 
 
Contact Andy Cottell, 01273 481955,  
Email: andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, 
this meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived for future viewing. 
The broadcast / record is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm  
  
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


 
 
 

 

CABINET 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Cabinet held on 2 June 2020 at County Hall, Lewes 
 

 
PRESENT Councillors Keith Glazier (Chair) 
 Councillors Nick Bennett (Vice Chair), Bill Bentley, Claire Dowling, 

Carl Maynard, Rupert Simmons, Bob Standley and Sylvia Tidy 
 

 Members spoke on the items indicated  
 

Councillor Barnes  - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
Councillor Bennett   - item 6 (minute 4) 
Councillor Godfrey Daniel - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
Councillor Ensor  - Item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Field            - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
Councillor Galley  - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
Councillor Lambert  - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Maynard  - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Rodohan  - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4)  
Councillor Stephen Shing       - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Shuttleworth  - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Stogdon   - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Swansborough - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Tidy   - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Tutt   - items 5 and 6 (minutes 3 and 4) 
Councillor Ungar                - item 5 (minute 3) 
Councillor Whetstone  - item 6 (minute 4) 

 
 
1 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 MARCH 2020  
 
1.1 The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 3 March 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
 
2 REPORTS  
 
2.1 Copies of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 
 
 
3 CORONAVIRUS UPDATE  
 
3.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Executive. 
 
3.2 It was RESOLVED to note the report and the proposed approach to resetting the 
Council’s activities. 
 
Reason 
 
3.3 To review the measures taken by the Council in response to the coronavirus pandemic 
and to consider the proposed approach to resetting the Council’s activities. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

4 EAST SUSSEX ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY AND CORPORATE CLIMATE 
EMERGENCY PLAN  
 
4.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
4.2 It was RESOLVED to: 
 

1) agree the East Sussex Environment Strategy as set out at appendix 1 of the 
report;  

2) agree the corporate Climate Emergency Plan as set out at appendix 2 of the 
report; and 

3) agree to report progress towards the target of achieving climate neutrality to the 
County Council. 

 
Reason 
 
4.3 To agree the corporate Climate Emergency Plan and the East Sussex Environment 
Strategy which comprise a package of proposed measures to improve the environment in East 
Sussex and achieve the target of becoming carbon neutral.  
 
 
5 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20  
 
5.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
5.2 It was RESOLVED to approve the External Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
 
Reason 
5.3 The External Audit Plan provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the 
statutory audit of the Council’s accounts and identifies any significant risks 
 
 
6 INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND PLAN FOR 2020/21  
 
6.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
6.2 It was RESOLVED to agree the Council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2020/21. 
 
Reason 
 
6.3 The Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Plan sets out how the Council will meet its 
statutory requirements for internal audit. 
 
 
7  ITEMS TO BE REPORTED TO THE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 
7.1 The Cabinet agreed that items 5 and 6 should be reported to the County Council 
[Note: The items being reported to the County Council refer to minute numbers 3 and 4] 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

Report to: Cabinet 

Date: 23 June 2020 

Report by: Chief Executive 

Title: Council Monitoring Report – end of year 2019/20 

Purpose: To report Council monitoring for the full year 2019/20 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Cabinet is recommended to: 

1) note the end of year monitoring position for the Council 

1. Introduction 

1.1 This report sets out the Council’s outturns for the Council Plan targets, Revenue Budget, 
Capital Programme, and Savings Plan, together with Risks at the end of March 2020. 

1.2 Broad progress against the Council’s four strategic priority outcomes is summarised in 
paragraph 3 and an overview of finance and performance data is provided in the Corporate 
Summary at Appendix 1. Strategic risks are reported at Appendix 7. 

1.3 The period covered by the report excludes most of the impact of Covid 19. The service 
and financial implications of the pandemic will need to be taken into account for 2020/21 and 
beyond and will be considered as part of the State of the County report in July. 

2. Overview of Council Plan outturns 2019/20 

2.1 Good progress has been made, especially given the continuing uncertainties in national 
policy and pressure on resources.  

2.2 46 (76%) of the 61 Council Plan targets were achieved and 10 (16%) were not achieved. 
5 (8%) are carried over for reporting in quarter 1 of 2020/21. The carry overs are measures, 
where action has been completed, but the year-end outturn data is not yet available to report 
against the target. 

2.3 Of the 61 targets, the outturns for 3 (5%) are not comparable with the outturns from 
2018/19; of the remaining 58 measures which can be compared, 30 (49%) improved or were at 
the maximum (i.e. the most that can be achieved); 2 (3%) remained the same; 21 (35%) 
deteriorated; and 5 (8%) are carried over for reporting at quarter 1 2020/21. Although 21 
measures are showing a lower outturn compared to 2018/19, 13 (62%) of these have met their 
target for 2019/20. 

2.4 The year-end revenue outturn is an underspend of £0.9m. Within this position, there is an 
overspend on service budgets of £5.8m which has been mitigated by using the General 
Contingency budget, set at £3.6m and underspend within Treasury Management of £2.2m. 
Additionally there have then been small underspends on other centrally held budgets of £0.2m, 
together with additional Business Rates income and levy redistribution of £0.7m. Given the 
significant uncertainty around future funding levels for the authority, it is vital that every 
opportunity is taken to bolster the funding we hold to fund future activity and mitigate risks. It is 
therefore proposed that the underspend is allocated to reserves. 

2.5 The detailed reasons for the service budget variations are set out in the relevant 
appendices, summarised below as: 

• An overspend of £0.7m in Adult Social Care in the Independent Sector due to increased 
demand and costs for services for older people and working age adults; mitigated in part 
by the use of one-off funding from the Better Care Fund (BCF), a constructive review of 
the process for Continuing Healthcare assessments and cost-sharing agreements for 
clients discharged under Section 117 with NHS partners. 

• An overspend in Children’s Services of £5.8m in two main areas: Early Help and Social 
Care where there have been continuing pressures on care placements and difficulties in 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

sourcing accommodation for families in need; and Education and ISEND where the 
pressures have continued in residential facilities and disability agency placements. 

• An underspend in Business Services of £0.1m. This is due to an overspend in budgets 
managed on behalf of ESCC by Orbis, offset by an underspend on the contribution to 
the jointly funded Orbis budget. 

• An underspend in Communities, Economy and Transport of £0.5m. The most significant 
variances are in Transport where the late introduction of parking charge increases has 
resulted in the income target not being achieved this year; the resultant shortfall is offset 
by an underspend in Waste, mainly due to reduced household waste volumes. 

2.6 Within Treasury Management, the strategy is to maximise income and minimise the cost 
of debt where possible. During the year interest rates increased marginally on the funds that 
were invested, whilst opportunities were taken to repay debts where advantageous to do so. As 
part of the strategy, in March, the opportunity was taken to secure £20.0m of longer-term 
investments with other Local Authorities at attractive rates. This will also help underpin the 
Council’s investment performance going forward. Additionally, slippage on the capital 
programme meant that we had no need to increase borrowing. Combined resulting in a £2.1m 
underspend. Within Corporate Funding, an increase in Business Rate income and an additional 
one-off from the surplus on the national Business Rates Levy provided for increased income of 
£0.7m, a number of small underspends amounted to £0.2m. 

2.7 The quarter 4 capital programme is monitored against the revised programme submitted 
to the Council in February 2019, together with some minor net nil approved variations. The 
capital programme expenditure for 2019/20 was £94.5m against a budget of £101.1m, a 
variation of £6.6m. This comprises £10.0m slippage, offset by £3.4m; the net position of spend 
in advance and a small amount of underspend. 

2.8 The main movements are: 

• Within CET, of the £6.4m variation £2.2m is on schemes that are not managed by the 
Council, such as Skills for Rural Businesses - Post Brexit. There has been smaller scale 
slippage on a number of other projects, including on Newhaven Port Access as a result 
of storm delay and Bexhill Link Road the result of delays to part 1 compensation claims. 

• A minor net variation within BSD reflects the management of the slippage; mainly within 
the Schools Basic Need programme as a result of delays due to bad weather and at the 
Lansdown Unit, as a result of a more detailed profile of delivery following the contractors 
being on-site. Being able to be offset in part by spend in advance on other areas of the 
Basic Need programme. Further spend in advance on IT&D is due to the accelerated 
procurement of core IT&D infrastructure and laptops to mitigate against expected future 
price increases.  

2.9 The Strategic Risk Register, Appendix 7, was reviewed and updated to reflect the 
Council’s risk profile. Risk 1 (Roads) has been amended to reflect the impact of Covid-19 and 
also has updated risk controls. Risk 4 (Health), Risk 5 (Reconciling Policy, Performance and 
Resources), Risk 6 (Local Economic Growth), Risk 8 (Capital Programme), Risk 9 
(Workforce), Risk 10 (Recruitment) and Risk 15 (Climate) all have updated risk controls, a 
majority of which also relate to Covid-19. No risk scores have been amended as part of this 
review and no risks have been removed. 

2.10 A new risk (Covid-19) has been added to the Strategic Risk Register for this review. This 
risk refers to the Corporate impact on services and planning of the Covid-19 pandemic. This 
strategic level risk is underpinned by additional Covid-19 specific risks at an operational level. 

3. Progress against Council Priorities 

Driving sustainable economic growth 

3.1 We have made good progress in areas contributing to the East Sussex Growth Strategy 
during 2019/20. Business support programmes have assisted businesses to create 141 jobs 
and Locate East Sussex have assisted 36 businesses to move into, or relocate within, the 

Page 6



 

county. 34 Industry Champions took part in the Open Doors event in between October and 
December 2019, with over 1,000 students from schools and colleges in the county going on 
workplace visits. The Council was the only local authority to be awarded funding to improve 
careers education in primary schools, with £145,000 being used to provide a primary careers 
pilot. East Sussex was assigned almost £2.5m from the Local Growth Fund, including almost 
£1m to create new jobs and workspaces in Bexhill; and £1.5m for the replacement Exceat 
bridge (Appendix 5). 

3.2 The improvements to Terminus Road in Eastbourne; to modernise the town centre, 
improve the pedestrian environment, and complement the redevelopment of The Beacon 
shopping centre; were completed in January 2020 (Appendix 5). 

3.3 Road condition results (where a lower outturn indicates a better performance) for 2019/20 
show that the percentage of Principal roads requiring maintenance remains the same as in 
2018/19, 5%, exceeding the target for the year. The percentage of Non Principal roads requiring 
maintenance decreased, from 7% in 2018/19 to 5%, again exceeding the target. The 
percentage of unclassified roads requiring maintenance increased, from 9% in 2018/19 to 14%, 
however this was still within the target. 154 carriageway asset improvement schemes were 
completed in 2019/20, to maintain and improve the condition of the county’s roads (Appendix 5). 

3.4 In academic year 2018/19, 76% of pupils achieved a good level of development at the 
Early Years Foundation Stage, above the national average of 72%; the achievement gap 
between the lowest achieving 20% and the rest was 30%, which is lower than the national gap 
of 32%. Outcomes at Key Stage 1 in reading, writing and mathematics at the expected and 
greater depth standards were all above the national average. The outcomes for pupils with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities in all three subjects, at the expected and greater 
depth standards, were also above those seen for the same groups nationally (Appendix 4). 

3.5 The East Sussex Social Value Marketplace; which allows Voluntary, Community and 
Social Enterprise organisations working in communities to post requests for help on an online 
platform, which can then be considered by businesses and organisations; was publicly launched 
in November 2019. The Marketplace went on to win Social Innovation of the year at the National 
Social Value Awards in January 2020. During 2019/20 £4.9m (10.5%) of social value benefits 
was secured, including apprenticeships, placements for young carers and support for charities 
(Appendix 3). 

Keeping vulnerable people safe  

3.6 Health and Social Care projects for 2019/20 have delivered significant benefits to the 
people of East Sussex and these are highlighted later in this report, they include a new Care 
Home Call Line service, provided by GPs that enables care homes to seek advice about unwell 
residents preventing unnecessary trips to hospital. Since the Covid-19 Pandemic this has been 
expanded to further homes and realigned so all residents in a care home are under one GP 
practice improving the standardisation and responsiveness of care (Appendix 2). 

3.7 The East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership Business Plan 2020/23 has been 
finalised, priorities include: 

• prevent and protect vulnerable adults, young people and our communities from being 
exploited by serious and organised criminals in relation to county lines, modern slavery & 
human trafficking, and fraud-related harm; 

• prevent and protect individuals from becoming victims of serious violent crime, including 
knife crime; 

• prevent and protect individuals from the serious harm of domestic violence & abuse; rape 
and sexual violence and abuse; stalking and harassment; and harmful practices. 

Further details are provided under Adult Social Care and Health (Appendix 2). 

3.8 Trading Standards made 127 positive interventions to protect vulnerable people in 
2019/20, including visiting victims of rogue trading or financial abuse and installing call blockers 
to protect people from telephone scams (Appendix 5). 

Page 7



 

Helping people help themselves 

3.9 East Sussex Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the Council were successful in a 
bid to become a trailblazer in the implementation of new Mental Health Support Teams 
(MHSTs) in schools. This additional resource will build capacity to support children with mental 
health and emotional wellbeing needs. As the new teams will be in schools it provides the 
opportunity to build on the whole-school work on mental health and align it with existing support 
pathways for children (Appendix 4). 

3.10 We published our updated Excellence for All 2019 – 2021 strategy in 2019/20. The new 
strategy outlines the shared vision, values and ambitions the Council and our partners have for 
creating an excellent education system in the county, where no pupil or educational 
establishment is left behind. There is a sharper focus on the most disadvantaged and how we 
will deliver improvement through the partnership structures in the county (Appendix 4). 

3.11 The 2020/21 East Sussex Health and Social Care transformation plans for urgent, 
planned and community care have been completed. Children and Young People and Mental 
Health programmes will be included in the transformation plan governance framework overseen 
by the East Sussex Health and Care Partnership. Benefits from the projects include: changes to 
primary care processes and pathways to deliver efficiencies and patient care at the right time 
and in the right place; community care progressing with the integration of health and social care 
to provide seamless care; and urgent care initiatives to reduce demand from our emergency 
services, ensuring the right care first time (Appendix 2). 

Making best use of resources 

3.12 The Council reduced the amount of CO2 from its operations in 2019/20 by 4.8%, 
exceeding the target of 3%. Annual targets from 2020/21 have been revised to ensure they 
align with the Council’s Climate Emergency Plan. In Q2 Orbis also delivered a new contract 
which will see all of the electricity used by the Council come from renewable sources in April 
2020, this will also deliver savings in the region of £100k a year (Appendix 3). 

3.13 Sickness absence has reduced by 2.9% compared to 2018/19 to 8.48 days per FTE. This 
is the lowest level of since records formally started in 2006 (Appendix 3). 

Becky Shaw, Chief Executive 

Page 8



How to read this report 

This report integrates monitoring for finance, performance and risk. Contents are as follows: 

• Cover report 

• Appendix 1 Corporate Summary 

• Appendix 2 Adult Social Care and Health 

• Appendix 3 Business Services 

• Appendix 4 Children’s Services 

• Appendix 5 Communities, Economy and Transport 

• Appendix 6 Governance 

• Appendix 7 Strategic Risk Register 

Cover report, Appendix 1 

The cover report and Appendix 1 provide a concise corporate summary of progress against all 
our Council Plan Targets (full year outturns at quarter 4), Revenue Budget, Savings Targets, 
and Capital Programme. 

The cover report highlights a selection of key topics from the departmental appendices, for the 
four Council priorities: 

• driving sustainable economic growth; 

• keeping vulnerable people safe; 

• helping people help themselves; and 

• making best use of resources. 

More information on each of these topics is provided in the relevant departmental appendix 
referenced in brackets, e.g. (Appendix 2). More detailed performance and finance data is also 
available in the departmental appendices. 

Departmental Appendices 2 - 6 

The departmental appendices provide a single commentary covering issues and progress 
against key topics for the department (including all those mentioned in the cover report). This is 
followed by data tables showing progress against Council Plan Targets, Savings Targets, 
Revenue Budget, and Capital Programme for the department. 

For each topic, the commentary references supporting data in the tables at the end of the 
appendix, e.g. (ref i). The tables include this reference in the ‘note ref’ column on the right hand 
side. Where the commentary refers to the Revenue Budget or Capital Programme, it may refer 
to all or part of the amount that is referenced in the table, or it may refer to several amounts 
added together. Performance exceptions follow these rules: 

Quarter 1 

All targets not expected to be achieved at year end i.e. not RAG rated Green, and any 
proposed amendments or deletions. Changes to targets early in Q1 should be made under 
delegated authority for the Council Plan refresh in June.  

Quarter 2 
Targets that have changed RAG rating since Q1 including changes to Green (except where 
target was amended at Q1), plus proposed amendments or deletions.  

Quarter 3 
Targets that have changed RAG rating since Q2 including changes to Green (except where 
target was amended at Q2), plus proposed amendments or deletions. 

Quarter 4 

Targets that have changed RAG rating since Q3 to Red or Green (except where target was 
amended at Q3). Outturns that are not available are reported as Carry Overs. All target 
outturns for the full year are reported in the year end summary at Appendix 1. 

Strategic Risk Register Appendix 7 

Appendix 7 contains commentary explaining mitigating actions for all Strategic Risks. 

Page 9



APPENDIX 1 

Council Monitoring Corporate Summary – end of year 2019/20 

Council Plan performance targets 

Priority Total Red Green 
Carry 
Over 

Driving sustainable economic growth 27 4 23 0 

Keeping vulnerable people safe 11 2 6 3 

Helping people help themselves 20 3 15 2 

Making best use of resources 3 1 2 0 

Total 61 10 46 5 

 

Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Direction of travel since 2018/19 

   

Direction of Travel key: 

No Change:  Not Comparable: NC Carry Over: CO Worse:  
Improved 

(or at maximum):  
 

 

Council Plan year end 2019/20 outturn summary all measures 
(For targets not achieved commentary is provided in the relevant departmental appendix) 

All 61 Council Plan target outturns for the full year are reported below. Targets achieved are highlighted in green; 
targets not achieved are highlighted in red; and Carry Overs for reporting at Q1 2020/21 are highlighted in blue. 

For red outturns detailed information is contained in the departmental appendices for new exceptions at Q4 and 
these are highlighted in bold in the table below. Details of previous exceptions can be found in the referenced 
appendices for Q1-Q3 monitoring. 

Where available, performance improvement relative to 2018/19 is given under Direction of Travel. Measures marked 
NC do not have 2019/20 outturns, which are comparable with 2018/19 outturns. 

Page 10



APPENDIX 1 

Driving sustainable economic growth – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

BSD 
The percentage of Council procurement 
spend with local suppliers 

54% 54% 54%  

BSD 
Economic, social and environmental value 
committed through contracts, as a 
percentage of our spend with suppliers 

11.8% 

≥10.0% of value 
of annual 
contracts 
awarded 

10.5%  

BSD 
The Councils Apprenticeship Levy 
strategy supports the Council’s workforce 
development and training plans 

Baseline 
established 

Where 
appropriate 

Standards exist, 
to ensure 

apprenticeship 
training is 

available and 
taken up 

(subject to the 
needs of the 
business), 

which 
addresses skills 
shortages in the 

Council 

136 new starts 
(1.8% of our 
workforce) 

undertaking an 
apprenticeship 

for 2018/19 

Council spent 
31% of its total 

levy 
contributions in 

2018/19 

 

CET 
Deliver major transport infrastructure – 
Newhaven Port Access Road 

Works 
commenced 

January 2019 
for 19 month 
construction 

period 

Continue 
construction 

Estimated 
completion 

date, excluding 
landscape 
planting, is 
currently 

12/09/2020 

 

CET 
Percentage of Principal roads requiring 
maintenance 

5% 8% 5%  

CET 
Percentage of Non Principal roads 
requiring maintenance 

7% 9% 5%  

CET 
Percentage of Unclassified roads requiring 
maintenance 

9% 15% 14%  

CET 

The number of businesses and 
professionals receiving advice and support 
through training workshops and bespoke 
advice provided by Trading Standards 

19 workshops 

319 delegates 
300 

19 workshops 

346 delegates 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 

Driving sustainable economic growth – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

CET 
Deliver the new Employability and Skills 
Strategy: East Sussex business sector 
skills evidence base developed 

Six sector task 
groups and 

Apprenticeships 
East Sussex 

continue to meet 
quarterly and 
work to action 

plans 

104 Industry 
Champions 
recruited; of 

these, 34 earned 
Industry 

Champion 
certificate 

Seven sector 
task groups 

maintained, with 
each working to 
establish a new 
annual action 

plan and 
reporting to 

SES on actions 
and 

achievements 

Six sector task 
groups plus the 
Apprenticeships 

East Sussex 
task group 
working to 

action plans that 
meet the Skills 
East Sussex 

priorities 

 

CET 
Deliver the new Employability and Skills 
Strategy: East Sussex Careers Hub 

N/A 

Establish a 
Careers Hub 
and support 
schools to 
achieve an 

average of 3 
national 

benchmarks 

Recruit 15 
further Industry 
Champions to 

support Careers 
Hub activities 

Schools 
supported to 

achieve 100% 
in an average of 
4.4 benchmarks 

Number of 
Industry 

Champions 
(ICs) increased 

by 21 to 125 

ICs continued to 
actively support 

schools & 
colleges 

through the 
Careers Hub 

NC 

CET 
Work with Seachange Sussex to deliver 
major transport infrastructure – 
Queensway Gateway Road 

First phase 
completed in 

Q3 

Complete 
second phase 

of the road 

Second phase 
of road 

completed 
 

CET 

Deliver pedestrian improvements in 
Terminus Road (Eastbourne) using 
‘Shared Space’ concepts to coincide with 
opening of the new Arndale Centre 

Construction 
commenced 

March 2018 and 
continued 
throughout 

financial year 

Construction 
complete and 
monitor impact 

Construction 
completed 

Impact starting 
to be monitored 

 

CET 
Number of additional premises with 
improved broadband speeds 

9,511 premises 1,267 premises 1,197 premises  

CET 
Report progress on the level of broadband 
improvement in the Intervention Area 

97% of 
intervention area 
able to receive 

superfast 
speeds 

Report progress 
on the level of 

broadband 
improvement in 
the Intervention 

Area 

Contract 3 
delivered 22% 

superfast 
coverage in 
intervention 
area; Overall 

superfast 
coverage 

across county 
just below 98%. 

 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 

 

Driving sustainable economic growth – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

CET 
Deliver Culture East Sussex agreed 
actions to grow Cultural Tourism 

Recommend-
ations 

delivered 

Trial the T 
Stats (Tourism 

Statistics) 
monitoring 
tool with 
tourism 

businesses in 
the Lewes, 
Eastbourne 

and Wealden 
area 

T.stats being 
trialled by 

Eastbourne 
but not taken 

forward by 
Lewes or 

Wealden for 
now 

NC 

CET 
Job creation from East Sussex 
Programmes 

174.75 full time 
equivalent jobs 

created 

Support 
businesses to 

create 135 jobs 

141 jobs 
created  

CET 

In partnership with funding organisations 
provide online learning (including skills for 
life and ICT courses) in libraries (subject 
to contract) 

194 courses 80 courses 86 courses  

CS 
The percentage of eligible 2 year olds who 
take up a place with an eligible early years 
provider 

ESCC 84% 

National 
Average 

72% 

Above national 
average 

ESCC 86% 

National Avg. 
68% 

 

CS 

The percentage of pupils achieving a 
“good level of development*” at the Early 
Years Foundation Stage.  *A pupil 
achieving at least the expected level in 
each Early Learning Goal (ELG) within the 
three Prime areas of learning, and at least 
the expected level in each ELG within the 
literacy and numeracy Specific areas of 
learning 

Ac year 17/18: 

ESCC 
76.5% 

National 
Average 
71.5% 

Ac year 18/19: 

At or above 
national 
average 

Ac Year 18/19: 

ESCC 

76.0% 

National 
Average 

71.8% 

 

CS 

Average Progress 8 score for state funded 
schools.  
The average Progress 8 score shows how 
much progress pupils at this school made 
between the end of key stage 2 and the 
end of key stage 4, compared to pupils 
across England who got similar results at 
the end of key stage 2 

Ac year 17/18: 

ESCC 
-0.03 

National 
Average 

 -0.02 

Ac year 18/19: 

At national 
average 

Ac Year 18/19: 

ESCC 

-0.06 

National 
Average 

-0.03 

 

CS 

The percentage of disadvantaged pupils 
achieving at least the expected standard 
in each of reading, writing and maths at 
Key Stage 2 

Ac Year 17/18: 

ESCC 
49%  

National 
Average 

51% 

Ac year 18/19: 

 No more than 4 
percentage 
points below 

national 
average 

Ac Year 18/19: 

ESCC 

45.9% 

National 
Average 

51.5% 

 

 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 

Driving sustainable economic growth – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

CS 
The average Attainment 8 score for 
disadvantaged pupils 

Ac Year 17/18: 

ESCC 
33.2 

National 
Average 

36.8 

Ac year 18/19: 

No more than 4 
points below 

national 
average 

Ac Year 18/19: 

ESCC 

33.5 

National 
Average 

36.8 

 

CS 

The percentage of young people meeting 
the duty of RPA (Raising the Participation 
Age) by either participating in education, 
training or employment with training or 
undertaking re-engagement provision at 
academic age 16 (Year 12) 

93.9% 93% 93.7%  

CS 

The percentage of young people meeting 
the duty of RPA by either participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training or undertaking re-engagement 
provision at academic age 17 (Year 13) 

86.4% 86% 86.3%  

CS 
Average Progress 8 score for Looked 
After Children (LAC) 

Ac Year 17/18: 

ESCC 
-1.49 

National 
Average 

 -1.2 

Ac year 18/19: 

No more than 
0.5 points below 

the national 
average for LAC 

Ac Year 18/19: 

ESCC 

-1.33 

National 
Average 

-1.23 

 

CS 
The percentage of LAC participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training at academic age 16 (Year 12) 

86.1% (31/36) 80% 84% (59/70)  

CS 
The percentage of LAC participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training at academic age 17 (Year 13) 

87% (60/69) 70% 78% (49/63)  

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 

Keeping vulnerable people safe – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

ASC 

National outcome measure: The 
proportion of people who use services 
who say that those services have made 
them feel safe and secure (Adult Social 
Care Survey) 

87.6% ≥87.0% 83.0%  

ASC 

Percentage of Health and Social Care 
Connect referrals triaged and 
progressed to required services within 
required timescales 

85.6% 
(April 2018 to 
January 2019) 

90% 

84% 

(April 2019 to 
December 

2020) 

 

ASC 

Percentage of Health and Social Care 
Connect contacts that are appropriate 
and effective (i.e. lead to the provision 
of necessary additional services) 

96.8% 95% CO CO 

ASC 
The % of people affected by domestic 
violence and abuse who feel safe upon 
leaving the service 

88% 88% CO CO 

ASC 

When they leave the service the % of 
those affected by rape, sexual violence 
and abuse who have improved coping 
strategies 

80% 88% CO CO 

CET 
The number of positive interventions for 
vulnerable people who have become the 
target of rogue trading or financial abuse 

224 positive 
interventions 

100 
127 positive 
interventions  

CS 
Rate of children with a Child Protection 
Plan (per 10,000 children) 

55.5 
(588 children 
incl. 8 unborn) 

54.2 
(574 children) 

50.9 

(542 children 
incl. 5 unborn) 

 

CS 
Rate (of 0-17 population) of referrals to 
children’s social care services (per 10,000 
children) 

406 
(4301) 

518 393 (4165)  

CS 
Rate (of 0-17 population) of assessments 
completed by children’s social care 
services (per 10,000 children) 

341 
(3606 assess-
ments initiated) 

503.8 

333 

(3530 assess-
ments initiated) 

 

CS 
Rate of Looked After Children (per 10,000 
children) 

57.3 
(607 children) 

60.7 

(644 children) 

56.5 

(601 children)  
 

CS 

Average time between a child entering 
care and moving in with its adoptive 
family, for children who have been 
adopted (days). (Adoption Scorecard) 

3 Year Average 
for 2015-18: 

ESCC Outturn 
454 days 

National 
Average 
486 days 

Less than or 
equal to 
national 
average 

ESCC outturn 

448.7 days 

National 
Average 

486 days 

 

 

Page 15



APPENDIX 1 

Helping people help themselves – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

ASC 
Number of hospital bed days lost due to 
delayed transfers from hospital care (Daily 
average) 

47.9 39.8 47.1  

ASC 
Number of hospital bed days lost due to 
delayed transfers from hospital care due 
to Council social services (Daily average) 

9.3 11.5 7.7  

ASC 
Number of hospital bed days lost due to 
delayed transfers from hospital care due 
to local NHS (Daily average) 

37.2 24.4 38.3  

ASC 
National outcome measure: Proportion of 
working age adults and older people 
receiving self-directed support 

100% 
(4,867 clients) 

100% 
100% 

(4,746 clients) 
 

ASC 
National outcome measure: Proportion of 
working age adults and older people 
receiving direct payments 

31.5% 
(1,541 people) 

31.5% 
32.8% 

(1,555 people) 
 

ASC 
Number of carers supported through 
short-term crisis intervention 

765 540 921  

ASC 
Number of people receiving support 
through ‘STEPS to stay independent’ 

5,280 2,500 4,261  

ASC 
Number of people at risk of crisis receiving 
support through Homeworks 

N/A 800 1,154 NC 

ASC 

Enhance the delivery of Technology 
Enabled Care Services (TECS) more 
rapidly and more widely across areas 
including falls; frailty; crisis response; 
medication management, to avoid hospital 
admissions or re-admissions 

8,513 people 
receiving TECS 

7,926 people 
receiving TECS 

8,629 people 
receiving TECS  

ASC 
Number of providers registered with 
Support with Confidence 

222 244 246  

ASC 

The proportion of people who received 
short-term services during the year, where 
no further request was made for ongoing 
support 

92% 
(1,528 / 1,657) 

>90.5% 
93.1% 

(1,607 / 1,727) 
 

ASC 
Number of new service user 
interventions commenced as part of 
the Integrated Lifestyle Service 

7,043 6,000 CO CO 

 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 

Helping people help themselves – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

ASC 

The number of health and social care staff 
and voluntary sector organisations trained 
to deliver brief interventions and advice to 
promote, encourage and help people 
make healthier choices as part of the 
Making Every Contact Count (MECC) 
initiative 

Q3: 1,268 
(April 2018 to 

December 
2019) 

600 

595 

(April 2019 to 
December 

2020) 

 

ASC 

Cumulative percentage of the eligible 
population who have received an NHS 
health check since 2015/16 (five year 
period) 

51.7% 50% CO CO 

CET 
Road Safety: Implement behaviour 
change projects to reduce the speeding 
reoffending rate 

Trials of 
behavioural 

change 
initiatives 

started in Q2 
and continued 
throughout the 

year 

Implement 
measures to 

reduce 
speeding 

reoffending rate 

Trials of 
behavioural 

change 
initiatives 
continued 

Analysis of 
impact of 

Anniversary 
trial, carried out 
earlier this year, 

expected late 
spring 2020 

Other trials 
continued, 

interim analysis 
expected over 
the next few 

months 

 

CET 

The percentage of young drivers and their 
passengers who report positive attitudinal 
and behavioural change in response to the 
engagement campaign designed to 
reduce risk of collisions/KSIs immediately 
after intervention and over time 

Phase One of 
campaign run 

via social media 
and was 

successful; 
Phase Two 

targeting young 
males currently 

being 
developed 

15% Over 24%  

CET 
Road Safety: Implement infrastructure 
schemes on identified high risk routes 
to improve road safety 

5 schemes 
10 schemes 
(subject to 
funding) 

3 schemes 
completed  

CS 
Percentage of annual SEND review 
meetings where the child gave their view 
and/or participated 

88.0% 
(1,642 / 1,865) 

85% 
88.5% 

(1,960 / 2,216)  

 

Page 17



APPENDIX 1 

Helping people help themselves – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

CS 

The proportion of respondents to the 
feedback surveys who agree that things 
have changed for the better as a result of 
getting targeted support from Early Help or 
Children’s Centre Keywork Services 

Children’s 
Centre 

Keywork 
Services 
89.55% 

Early Help 
94% 

Average 
91% 

80% 

Children’s 
Centre 

Keywork 
Services 

86% 

Early Help 

92% 

Average 

89% 

 

CS 

Number of households eligible under the 
government’s Troubled Families 
programme receiving a family support 
intervention 

3,278 
(cumulative 

total) 

Cumulative 
3,450 

Cumulative 

4,306 
 

 

Making best use of resources – outturn summary 

Dept Performance Measure 
Outturn 
2018/19 

Target 2019/20 
Outturn 
2019/20 

Direction of 
Travel 

BSD 
Number of working days lost per FTE (Full 
Time Equivalent) employee due to 
sickness absence in non-school services 

8.73 9.24 8.48  

BSD 
Deliver the Property Asset Investment 
Strategy 

Resource 
model in place 

Development 
of feasibility 
studies for a 
minimum of 4 

key sites 

Feasibility 
studies in 

development 
for 7 key 
projects 

 

BSD 
Cost of occupancy of corporate 
buildings per sq. metre ( 

£151.49 / sq. 
metre 

£148.46 / sq. 
metre 

£161.98  

 

Page 18



APPENDIX 1 

Revenue budget outturn (net £000) 

 

Revenue budget summary (£000) 

 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Service Expenditure 

Adult Social Care 263,797 (93,245) 170,552 265,234 (94,025) 171,209 (1,437) 780 (657) 

Safer Communities 583 (247) 336 846 (510) 336 (263) 263 - 

Public Health 29,092 (29,092) - 27,802 (27,802) - 1,290 (1,290) - 

Business Services 47,501 (24,253) 23,248 45,480 (22,367) 23,113 2,021 (1,886) 135 

Children’s Services 321,945 (244,625) 77,320 330,688 (247,571) 83,117 (8,743) 2,946 (5,797) 

Communities, 
Economy & Transport 

117,220 (57,918) 59,302 117,310 (58,481) 58,829 (90) 563 473 

Governance Services 8,189 (823) 7,366 8,304 (969) 7,335 (115) 146 31 

Total Service Spend 788,327 (450,203) 338,124 795,664 (451,725) 343,939 (7,337) 1,522 (5,815) 
 

Centrally Held Budgets (CHB) 

Treasury 
Management 

20,186 (2,600) 17,586 18,070 (2,598) 15,472 2,116 (2) 2,114 

Capital Programme 2,872 - 2,872 2,872 - 2,872 0 - 0 

Unfunded Pensions 10,338 - 10,338 10,178 - 10,178 160 - 160 

General Contingency 3,570 - 3,570 - - - 3,570 - 3,570 

Contrib to Reserves 22,933 - 22,933 22,897 - 22,897 36 - 36 

Apprenticeship Levy 600 - 600 578 - 578 22 - 22 

Levies, Grants and 
Other  

984 (21,112) (20,128) 928 (21,156) (20,228) 56 44 100 

Total CHB 61,483 (23,712) 37,771 55,523 (23,754) 31,769 5,960 42 6,002 
 

Corporate Funding 

Business Rates - (84,325) (84,325) - (85,004) (85,004) - 679 679 

Page 19



APPENDIX 1 

Revenue Support 
Grant 

- 
- - 

- 
- - - - - 

Council Tax - (290,684) (290,684) - (290,684) (290,684) - - - 

New Homes Bonus - (886) (886) - (886) (886) - - - 

Total Corp Funding 0 (375,895) (375,895) 0 (376,574) (376,574) 0 679 679 

          

Total 849,810 (849,810) 0 851,187 (852,053) (866) (1,377) 2,243 866 

          

Balance of General 
Contingency to 
reserves 

- - - 866 - 866 (866) - (866) 

FINAL TOTAL 849,810 (849,810) 0 852,053 (852,053) (0) (2,243) 2,243 0 

 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1 

Capital programme (gross £ millions) – approved projects 

 

Key:  Current budget  Forecast  Actuals  Variance 
 

 

Capital programme summary (£000) 

Approved project 
Total project – all 

years* 

2019/20 (£000) 

End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

 

Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 

budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

ASC 10,409 10,411 2,247 2,247 0 0 0 0 

BSD 276,424 276,411 37,000 36,961 39 13 3,027 (3,001) 

CS 28,336 28,282 3,135 3,013 122 0 122 0 

CET 576,858 576,738 58,687 52,282 6,405 120 6,843 (558) 

GS - - 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 892,027 891,842 101,069 94,503 6,566 133 9,992 (3,559) 

Capital receipts    (3,122) (3,122) 0    

Non-specific grants    (37,580) (36,342) (1,238)    

Specific Funding: 
grants/external 
contributions/CERA   

(23,164) (23,066) (98) 
   

S106 Contributions    (4,802) (1,994) (2,808)    

Community 
Infrastructure Levy   

(1,600) (1,200) (400) 
   

Reserves - capital and 
set aside   

(5,851) (4,619) (1,232) 
   

Borrowing   (24,950) (24,160) (790)    

Total   (101,069) (94,503) (6,566)    

 

Page 21



APPENDIX 1 

Centrally held budgets (CHB) and Corporate Funding 

The Treasury Management (TM) Strategy, which provides the framework for managing the Council’s cash balances 
and borrowing requirement, continues to reflect a policy of ensuring minimum risk whilst aiming to deliver secure 
realistic investment income on the Council’s cash balances. During Quarter 4 the Bank of England reduced bank 
rate on two occasions in March to a record low of 0.10%. Investment rates during the quarter were not impacted too 
significantly due a March reduction but will have a bearing on returns for 2020/21 and beyond. The average level of 
Council funds available for investment purposes during the quarter was £201m. These funds were available on a 
temporary basis, and the level of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, external 
debt repayments, receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme.  

The total amount received in short term interest for the quarter to 31 March 2020 was £558k at an average rate of 
1.11%.  

The majority of the Council’s external debt was held as long term loans (£237.9m). On 31st March 2020 a £1.3m 
PWLB loan matured at 8.5%, with a further £1.3m of fixed term PWLB debt maturing in September 2020 with a loan 
rate of 8.125%.    

No short or long term borrowing was undertaken in the quarter and no further cost effective opportunities have 
arisen during Q4 to restructure the existing PWLB or wider debt portfolio. During Q4 a number of Local Authority 
investments were made to secure a fixed return, with market volatility and the increased risk of a reduced interest 
rate environment these investments up to 2 years locked in some value into 2020/21 and beyond.      

The comparable TM budget has outturned at an underspend of £2.1m (£2.0m in Q3) this is based on the position on 
the capital programme removing the need to borrow externally in 2019/20, together with the financial information 
presented above.  

The Council holds a general contingency of £3.6m that, together with the underspend on TM has been used to 
cover the service deficit. Additional income from Business Rates and the redistribution of the Levy together with 
some other minor underspending allows the unallocated amount on centrally held budgets of £0.9m to be 
transferred to reserves. 

 

Changes to Fees & Charges 

At RPPR in February 2020 it was reported that the charge for Registration Services VIP SG Package Evelyn Room - 
Mon-Thu was increasing by 2.6% from £470 to £482. Subsequently HMRC has given new advice around treatment 
of VAT for these services and as a consequence the charge for 2020/21 has changed to £420. This only impacts on 
the amount of VAT payable and does not impact the non-VAT element that is reflected in the service’s budget. 

There are no proposed increases over 2.5% for Quarter 4. 

 

General balances 

The General Fund balance was £10.0m as at 31 March 2020. General balances allow the Council to manage 
unforeseen financial circumstances without the need to make immediate savings. 

The Schools balances as at 31 March 2020 were £15.0m. 

 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1 

Outstanding debt analysis (£ millions) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The value of debt over 5 months at Quarter 4 has decreased by £0.107m to £2.069m, compared to the 2018/19 
outturn of £2.176m.   

In addition, the value of aged debt over 5 months as a proportion of debt raised has reduced from 2.52% in 2018/19 
to 2.16% in 2019/20. 

The value of debt raised has continued to rise from £86.1m in 2018/19 to £95.7m in 2019/20. 

The collection of income continues to be a high priority focus area. Achievements during Quarter 4; the 
implementation of automated commercial debt collection monitoring, 52% of all invoices for the year collected by 
direct debit, and the reduction of write-offs from £318k in 2018/19 to £274K in 2019/20. Priorities for 2020/21 include 
preparing a business case for paperless direct debits, review of unit cost of raising an invoice, plus planning and 
scoping a debt recovery end to end process review with colleagues in ASC and Legal Services.  Debt recovery 
targets will need to be adapted because of the inevitable debt recovery backlog in the coming year following the 
suspension of debt recovery due to the COVID pandemic. 

 

Page 23



APPENDIX 1 

Revenue Savings Summary 2019/20 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Original 
Target for 
2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

ASC 730 6,817 6,211 606 0 

BSD / Orbis 1,003 1,003 1,003 0 0 

CS 1,049 3,640 2,382 1,258 0 

CET 2,349 2,636 1,636 1,000 0 

GS - - - - - 

Total Savings 5,131 14,096 11,232 2,864 0 

ASC   - - - 

BSD / Orbis   - - - 

CS   - - - 

CET   - - - 

GS   - - - 

Subtotal Permanent Changes 1   0 0 0 

Total Savings & Permanent Changes 5,131 14,096 11,232 2,864 0 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not 
achieved in the year (£'000) 

Temporary  
Funding 2 

Part of 
reported 

variance 3 

Total  

ASC - 606 606  

BSD / Orbis - - -  

CS 1,258 - 1,258  

CET 1,000 - 1,000  

GS - - -  

Total 2,258 606 2,864  

 
1 Permanent changes will replace a previously agreed saving that can no longer be achieved. It is done 
via approval of quarterly monitoring. 

2 Temporary funding will only replace a slipped or unachieved saving for one year; the saving will still need 
to be made in future years (or be replaced with something else).  
3 The slipped or unachieved saving will form part of the department's overall variance - it will either 
increase an overspend or decrease an underspend. The saving will still need to be made in future years 
(or be replaced with something else).  

 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 

Adult Social Care 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Working Age 
Adults: Nursing, 
Residential and 
Community Based 
services 

Review care packages 
to ensure these are 
focused on those with 
Care Act eligible 
needs and deliver 
support in the most 
cost effective way. The 
average spend on 
Working Age Adults is 
significantly higher in 
East Sussex than in 
other south east 
councils. The intention 
is to deliver an overall 
level of support which 
is fair, reflects need 
and achieves a level of 
spend comparable to 
other councils. Any 
decisions to change 
care arrangements will 
be dependent on 
reviews that take 
account of a client’s 
individual 
circumstances. Some 
clients may however 
have their support 
reduced or removed. 

247 247 124 123 - 

Meals in the 
Community 

Withdraw the subsidy 
that support clients to 
pay for their meals. 
Clients would now pay 
the full cost of this 
service. A range of 
options are available 
within the market to 
ensure that vulnerable 
adults can access 
good quality, nutritious 
meals. Clients would 
continue to be 
signposted and 
supported to access 
these services. 

483 483 - 483 - 

Supporting People 

Review Supporting 
People 
accommodation / 
building based 
services.   

- 649 649 - - 

Page 25



APPENDIX 1 

Adult Social Care 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Supporting People 

Review Supporting 
People floating 
housing support 
services:  Home 
Works for people aged 
16-64 and STEPS for 
people aged 65 and 
over 

- 1,894 1,894 - - 

Stroke Association Review service - 36 36 - - 

Management and 
Support 

Review of Staffing 
structures within 
Strategy, 
Commissioning, 
Planning, Performance 
& Engagement 

- 248 248 - - 

Assessment and 
Care Management 

Review Assessment 
and Care Management 
Staffing  

- 1,392 1,392 - - 

Older People 
Services 

Review Milton Grange 
and Firwood House 
intermediate care 
services 

- 815 815 - - 

Older People 
Services 

Review Day Services - 188 188 - - 

Other Adults 
Review Discretionary 
East Sussex Support 
Scheme (DESSS)  

- 221 221 - - 

Learning 
Disabilities 

Review Existing 
Service Models 

- 580 580 - - 

Community Safety 
Review Staffing 
funding of Community 
Safety 

- 40 40 - - 

HIV Support Review services - 24 24 - - 

Management and 
Support 

Review of Training and 
Development; Staffing 
structures within 
Strategy, 
Commissioning, 
Planning, Performance 
& Engagement, and 
Contracts and 
Purchasing Unit 

- (55) (55) - - 

Management and 
Support 

Assessment and Care 
Management Staffing; 
Complaints Unit  

- 55 55 - - 

Total Savings 730 6,817 6,211 606 0 
   - - - 

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0 

Total Savings & Permanent Changes 730 6,817 6,211 606 0 

Page 26



APPENDIX 1 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

  

Working Age Adults: Nursing, Residential 
and Community Based services 

- 123 123   

Meals in the Community - 483 483   

Total 0 606 606   

 

Business Services / Orbis 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Business Services: 
Orbis and 
Managed on 
Behalf of (MOBO) 
services: Finance, 
IT&D, 
Procurement, 
Property Services, 
HR and OD and 
Business 
Operations 

The Advisory and 
Change areas of 
support are being 
analysed and 
presented to the 3 
partner Councils to 
determine which 
elements need to form 
part of the Core Offer 
as they are essential in 
supporting the 
partners deliver their 
priorities, and which 
elements will no longer 
be provided. The aim 
would be to reduce 
spending as set out in 
this table although the 
details of how this 
might be achieved is 
still being developed. 

1,003  1,003 1,003 - - 

Total Savings 1,003 1,003 1,003 0 0 
   - - - 

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0 

Total Savings & Permanent Changes 1,003 1,003 1,003 0 0 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

  

 - - -   

Total 0 0 0   

 

Page 27



APPENDIX 1 

Children's Services 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Schools Learning 
and Effectiveness 
Service (SLES): 
promote high 
standards 

Reduce the support 
provided to prevent 
failure in schools 
causing concern. 
Limited support only 
for schools that have 
failed in terms of 
performance, 
leadership and 
governance or 
financial matters. 
Significantly reduce 
the support to develop 
school partnerships or 
move to academy 
status. This could 
mean pupil attainment 
will not improve and 
may decline. 

124 124 124 - - 

SLES: 
Performance 
monitoring  

Reduce staffing and 
management capacity 
for performance 
monitoring across 
maintained and 
academy schools, only 
light touch monitoring 
where risk of serious 
failure has been 
brought to attention of 
LA. This could reduce 
the proportion of good 
or outstanding 
schools. 

725 725 725 - - 

SLES: Clerking 
Service 

Remove the clerking 
service. This will mean 
schools will need to 
recruit, train and pay 
for their clerking 
service.  

158 158 158 - - 

Home to School 
Transport 

Further reduction in 
funding provided to 
colleges to support 
disadvantaged pupils 
attending college and 
reduction in 
Independent Travel 
Training spend. 

42 42 42 - - 

Support Services, 
including 
Admissions, Buzz 
and Music service 

Management, staff and 
efficiency savings 
across support 
functions and frontline 
services.  

- 10 10 - - 

Page 28



APPENDIX 1 

Children's Services 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

SWIFT and YOT 
Review of non-
statutory social care 
services. 

- 166 166 - - 

ISEND and 
ESBAS 

Reduce direct support 
for schools to address 
attendance and 
exclusions, increase 
traded offer. 

- 831 570 261 - 

Early Help   - 1,561 564 997 - 

Safeguarding and 
QA unit 

Reductions in admin 
support and reduction 
in 1fte of Independent 
Reviewing Officer and 
Child Protection 
Advisor (IROs). 

- 23 23 - - 

Total Savings 1,049 3,640 2,382 1,258 0 
   - - - 

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0 

Total Savings & Permanent Changes 1,049 3,640 2,382 1,258 0 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

  

Reform Grant 261 -  261   

Corporate reserves 997 -  997   

Total 1,258 0 1,258   

 

Page 29



APPENDIX 1 

Communities, Economy & Transport 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Highways 
Maintenance 

Budgets for highways 
related investigations 
and studies and ESCC 
highways staff costs to 
be funded from capital 
budget.  

889 889 889 - - 

Archives and 
Records Service 

We will not be able to 
provide the same level 
of support to 
customers of The 
Keep when requesting 
archive material and 
we will not provide an 
educational outreach 

32 32 32 - - 

Road Safety 
Services 

Reduced road safety 
education and no 
engagement with 
Community Safety 
Partnerships or Joint 
Action Groups 

32 32 32 - - 

Concessionary 
Travel 

Reduce the budget in 
line with current trends 
in usage. 

150 150 150 - - 

Parking: Civil 
Parking 
Enforcement  

Increase on-street 
parking charges where 
possible. Surpluses to 
be used for transport 
related funding.  

1,000 1,000 - 1,000 - 

Household Waste 
Disposal 

Ongoing review of 
commercial saving 
opportunities. 

200 200 200 - - 

Environmental 
Advice Services 

Income generation 
through traded 
services. 

15 15 15 - - 

Ashdown Forest 
Remove financial 
support to 
conservators. 

31 31 31 - - 

Waste 

Savings slipped to 
2019/20, to be 
mitigated in 18/19 by a 
draw from reserves. 

- 162 162 - - 

Page 30



APPENDIX 1 

Communities, Economy & Transport 2019/20 (£’000) 

Service 
description 

Description of 
savings proposal 

Original 
Target For 

19/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Library and 
Information 
Service 

Libraries 
Transformation 
Programme - 
development and 
implementation of the 
Libraries’ Strategic 
Commissioning 
Strategy 

- 125 125 - - 

Total Savings 2,349 2,636 1,636 1,000 0 
   - - - 

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0 

Total Savings & Permanent Changes 2,349 2,636 1,636 1,000 0 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

  

Civil Parking Enforcement use of Waste 
Service underspend  

1,000 - 1,000   

Total 1,000 0 1,000   

 

Page 31



APPENDIX 2 

Adult Social Care and Health – end of year 2019/20 

Summary of progress on Council Priorities, issues arising, and achievements 

Adult Social Care (ASC) 

Health and Social Care Integration – the 2020/21 East Sussex Health and Social Care transformation plans for urgent, 
planned and community care have been completed. Children and Young People and Mental Health programmes will be 
included in the transformation plan governance framework overseen by the East Sussex Health and Care Partnership. 
Most of the plans will have a delayed start or be revised due to the COVID-19 pandemic which has led to the rapid 
acceleration of some of the plans e.g. outpatient clinic virtual appointments, and has automatically addressed some of our 
demand issues e.g. A&E attendances are significantly reduced as people now prefer not to come to the hospital and use 
the alternative, and often more appropriate routes for treatment. 

The 2019/20 projects have delivered significant benefits to the people of East Sussex including further integration of 
Health and Social Care. The main highlights include; 

• Changes to our primary care processes and pathways to deliver efficiencies and patient care at the right time and in 
the right place:  

✓ A Clinical Reference group was established to review referrals into secondary care to understand where 
collaborative working between General Practitioners (GPs) and secondary care consultants could reduce the 
number of inappropriate referrals enabling people to be assured and treated within primary care. This was 
supported by the implementation of an online advice and guidance service across East Sussex enabling GPs 
to seek online advice from secondary care consultants before referral. 

✓ A Pathology optimisation group was set up with primary and secondary care consultants and pathologists to 
work together to optimise the test request to the hospital from GPs. 

✓ Complex Diabetes conditions are now treated by a GP led multidisciplinary team providing all the support in 
one place; health, diet, podiatry, psychology, medication, treatment, extended access to urgent foot clinics. 

✓ Gastroenterology conditions are now seen initially by a primary and secondary collaborative triage clinic 
ensuring rapid diagnosis and timely assessments where conditions can be better self-managed or in primary 
care. 

✓ A primary care led respiratory service has supported people with lung conditions, preventing exacerbation and 
enabling them to stay home and well. 

✓ Towards the end of this year a new Care Home Call Line service was established, provided by GPs the line 
enables care homes to seek advice about unwell residents preventing unnecessary trips to hospital.  Since the 
COVID-19 Pandemic this has been expanded to further homes and realigned so all residents in a care home 
are under one GP practice improving the standardisation and responsiveness of care. 

• Community care has delivered great progress in integrating health and social care to provide seamless care for 
people: 

✓ The integration of community nursing and social care teams now working together to manage joint caseloads 
resulting in a seamless service for people under both services. 

✓ Hospital and adult social care discharge teams working as one to deliver an efficient and highly organised 
discharge experience to the optimum place. 

✓ The integration of our rehabilitation and reablement teams has led to seamless care for people leaving 
hospital needing community care. 

• Urgent care initiatives have reduced the demand from our emergency services ensuring the right care first time: 

✓ Health and Social Care Connect have two key workers providing a High Intensity User Service working with 
our most vulnerable people with high emergency attendances. The service works with the people to advise on 
self-help and provide guidance on where to seek support before reaching a crisis. 

✓ Urgent Treatment Centres have been implemented at both emergency sites at Hastings and Eastbourne 
providing a primary care led diagnostic service enabling people to go home quicker if emergency treatment is 
not required. 

Minimising unnecessary delayed discharges from hospital – New and more challenging targets were set by NHS 
England through the Better Care Fund (BCF) for 2018, which represent further reductions on the already significant 
improvements made in the level of delays between April 2017 and March 2018. Through a range of actions a 

Page 32



APPENDIX 2 

significant reduction has been achieved in the levels of delayed discharges from hospital; particularly in relation to 
delays attributable to ASC, which is meeting the target set in the BCF. 

Between April 2019 and February 2020 there was an average 47.1 delayed transfers from hospital care per day. This 
has improved from 72.4 in the same period in 2017/18 (baseline), equating to a 35% reduction. This can be broken 
down as follows: 

• An average 38.3 delayed transfers from hospital care per day due to the local NHS, this has improved from 43.9 
in the same period in 2017/18 (a 13% reduction). 

• An average 7.7 delayed transfers from hospital care per day due to Council social services, this has improved 
from 25.8 in the same period in 2017/18 (a 70% reduction). 

• An average 1.1 delayed transfers were jointly attributable to Adult Social Care and the NHS. 

Although the target of 39.8 for all delays and the target of 24.4 for NHS delays will not be achieved, implementation of 
a number of actions to reduce Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) within the county such as Discharge to Assess beds 
(designed to avoid unnecessary admissions to acute hospitals and, where an admission is necessary, ensures that 
people are discharged as soon as is safe and practical back to their own homes, or as close to home as possible) 
have led to a significant reduction in the levels of DToC from the 2017 baseline. We will be continuing to implement a 
number of actions to reduce DToC in the county. 

Figures for March 2020 will not be available, as usual reporting on DToCs has stopped for three months currently due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The proportion of people who use services who say that those services have made them feel safe and secure 
– The proportion of people who use services who say that those service have made them feel safe and secure has 
shown a decrease (4.6 percentage points) to 83.0% and did not meet target for 2019/20 (ref i). 

It should be noted that of the people who said services did not make them feel safe and secure over 80% stated (in 
the question as to how safe they felt) that they feel as safe as they want or adequately safe. 69 comments relating to 
people’s feelings of safety were received. 62% of comments were deemed to be negative about issues other than 
people’s social care and support (around a third of these were to do with people’s fear of falls). This reflects 
comments analysed through previous years’ surveys, where a significant amount of comments received were 
negative about issues other than people’s social care and support, particularly in relation to people’s fear of falls.  

Historical analysis of previous year’s surveys has also indicated that a large proportion of adults supported by ASC 
feel safe regardless of the services they receive so their service provision is less likely to have an impact as there is 
no expectation for services to make them feel safer. 

Reabling people to maximise their level of independence – Reablement services are provided to help people to 
regain mobility and daily living skills, especially after a hospital stay. A range of measures are used to look at how 
effective reablement services are: 

• 72% of service users discharged from the Joint Community Rehabilitation Service required no on-going care. 

• Between April and December 2019 89.7% of older people discharged from hospital to reablement / rehabilitation 
services were at home 91 days after their discharge from hospital. 

• In 2019/20, 93.1% people who received short-term services made no further request for on-going support. 

Enabling people to live independently at home and delaying dependency – Frail adults across East Sussex can 
receive Technology Enabled Care Services (TECS), to help manage risks and maintain independence at home. 
TECS includes Telecare, which offers a range of sensors and detectors to meet different needs, such as wearable 
alert buttons, fall detectors or medication dispensers. At the end of Q4, 8,629 people were receiving TECS. 

Adults are able to take control of the support they receive –  

• There are currently 246 members signed up to Support with Confidence. This is made up of 198 Personal 
Assistants (PA’s) and 48 businesses. In addition to these, there are 92 current applications being processed (84 
PA’s and eight businesses). 

• At the end of Q4, 32.8% of working age and older clients were receiving Direct Payments (DP). This equates to a 
total of 1,555 people. DP are offered to all clients where appropriate and support is in place at the start of the 
process to ensure as many clients as possible take up DP and continue to receive them for as long as required. 

Adults are supported to find and keep safe and affordable accommodation. 

• 1,000 people were supported in Q4 through STEPS to Stay Independent to maintain their independence and 
provided with advice and support on topics such as debt, welfare and healthy lifestyles 

• 1,154 people were supported in Q4 through the Home Works service to find and keep safe and affordable 
accommodation and to improve their health, wellbeing and independence 

Page 33



APPENDIX 2 

Health and Social Care Connect referrals triaged and progressed to required services within required 
timescales – Activity is only available for December at this stage. Between April and December 84% of Health Hub 
referrals were handled within the correct time scales across all priorities (ref ii). The shortfall in performance is due to 
a deficit of nurses within the Health Hub. Due to current circumstances the staffing levels for nurses have remained 
the same and as such are still not at full compliment. This will be picked up again once the pandemic is over. 

Adult Social Care Survey – Key results from the 2019/20 Adult Social Care survey have generally remained positive, 
with six out of seven national outcome measures expected to remain in the upper or upper middle quartiles nationally.  

There have been increases in the following areas: 

• The proportion of people who say they have control over their daily lives (increase from 81.7% in 2018/19 to 
82.4%) 

• Proportion of people who use services and their carers, who reported that they had as much social contact as they 
would like (increase from 49.2% in 2018/18 to 51.9%) 

Although overall satisfaction has shown a decrease (3.9 percentage points) and did not meet target for 2019/20, 
performance is still predicted to be in the upper quartile (based on 2018/19 thresholds), therefore there are no 
significant concerns at this time in relation to this measure. 

Detailed analysis of the comments received through the survey will be undertaken to identify if there are any themes 
behind the decrease in satisfaction rates, however it is anticipated that the cumulative impact of financial pressures 
and resulting cuts have started to impact on this. 

Safer Communities 

The Safer Communities Board Partnership Development Day took place on the 4 July 2019. The event focused on 1) 
what the Safer Communities Partnership priorities should be for the next three years and 2) how the Safer 
Communities Board should be structured. The event included presentations from the Safer East Sussex Team; 
Commissioning leads for Domestic Abuse and Substance Misuse; Sussex Police and Community Safety Partnerships.  

Following approval of the East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership priorities and work streams at the Safer 
Communities Board in September 2019, the East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership Business Plan 2020/23 has 
now been finalised. The plan provides more detail around the priority areas, partnership achievements and future 
partnership plans. It also details district and borough level community safety work streams. The partnership priorities 
are cross cutting, and we will continue to work closely with the Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner, and Local 
Safeguarding Children’s and Safeguarding Adults Board on shared work streams, particularly those that involve 
working with local communities and partners to keep East Sussex safe, focusing on the following priority areas: 

• Prevent and protect vulnerable adults, young people and our communities from being exploited by serious and 
organised criminals in relation to county lines, modern slavery & human trafficking, and fraud-related harm. 

• Prevent and protect individuals from becoming victims of serious violent crime, including knife crime. 

• Prevent and protect individuals from the serious harm of domestic violence & abuse; rape and sexual violence 
and abuse; stalking and harassment; and harmful practices. 

In addition to these priority areas, a cross cutting theme was identified: 

• Raise awareness of online safety and encourage young people to develop a positive and healthy relationship with 
social media, the internet and mobile phones. 

Vulnerable People being Exploited & Recruited by Organised Crime Groups – Throughout 2019/20, the Safer 
East Sussex Team, Stop the Traffik and Rother Voluntary Action have worked together to raise awareness of the 
different types of exploitation, used by organised crime groups, affecting our communities. The Communities Against 
Exploitation Campaign targeted different audiences, at 12 different events across the Rother area, covering the main 
types of exploitation (criminal, financial, labour and sexual). Several specialist partners who had expertise and 
knowledge contributed to and collaborated with the campaign. The campaign brought the different types of 
exploitation under one umbrella to help audiences gain an understanding of the issues, what the types of exploitation 
look like, how to spot the signs and how to report concerns. 

The campaign was well received with positive feedback. Following the business event, over 70% of attendees knew 
more about spotting the signs of fraud and financial exploitation. 66% of attendees at the community event agreed 
their level of knowledge on spotting the signs of exploitation had increased and 50% strongly agreed they would be 
confident about reporting or sharing information if they thought someone was being exploited. 

The Safer East Sussex Team supported the Multi-Agency Child Exploitation (MACE) group by coordinating a 
contextual safeguarding response to a number of young people identified as at risk of sexual exploitation. Following a 
peer group assessment and neighbourhood assessment by Children’s Services, a local plan to coordinate a 
community response was developed. This involved educating, training and putting in place preventative measures to 

Page 34



APPENDIX 2 

a number of community venues and organisations, as well as developing improved information sharing processes to 
safeguard this group in the future. 

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking – In Q2, the first Modern Slavery First Responder training sessions for local 
authorities were delivered in partnership with the Safeguarding Adults Board, Stop the Traffik and Sussex Police. Key 
staff from ASC and colleagues from Rother District Council learnt about the changes to the national referral 
mechanism, which is a process for identifying victims and ensuring they receive the appropriate support. Practical 
activities included engaging with potential victims and how to refer using the new Modern Slavery pathway in East 
Sussex. 

Vulnerable Victims of Fraud & Scams – In February 2020, the East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership hosted 
the East Sussex Against Scams Charter Partner (ESASP) event at the Cumberland Hotel in Eastbourne sponsored by 
the Best of Eastbourne. The event brought together charter partners to learn about newly developed initiatives in the 
fight against scams, such as the accessible Friends Against Scams training created by the Involvement Matters 
Team, Young Friends Against Scams training by the National Trading Standards (NTS) Scams Team and the 
volunteer fraud prevention initiative developed by Sussex Police. Other partners such as Age UK East Sussex and the 
Sussex Elder Abuse Recovery Service shared examples of the support they provide scams victims. Following the 
event new preventative resources from key speakers was shared with all charter partners.  

From April 2020 the NTS Scams team has been signposting organisations from East Sussex that become Friends 
Against Scams organisations to the East Sussex Against Scams Partnership which should see the membership 
further increase. 

Cyber Crime, Cyber bullying and online safety – During 2019/20, the Safer East Sussex Team continued to deliver 
the Relationship Programme in Primary Schools. The programme is based on skills which children and young people 
need for building positive, enjoyable, respectful and non-exploitative relationships and the importance for staying safe 
both on and offline. These workshops focus on the different types of relationships young people have in the world 
today, and pupils can contribute by discussing different scenarios around the law including: hate crime, domestic 
abuse, county lines and online bullying. The programme consists of four workshops: 

• Our Relationship with Ourselves. 

• Our Relationships with Others. 

• Our Relationships with our Community. 

• Our Relationships with Social Media. 

17 Primary Schools have now participated in the Relationships programme, and the feedback has been extremely 
positive; “The sessions are absolutely fantastic. Children were really engaged, looked forward to the lessons and were 
able to discuss at length after. This is a fantastic scheme of work that is relevant, age appropriate, engaging and 
expertly delivered. Thank you very much and we very much hope to have Dave back again in the future. I would 
highly recommend to all primary schools”. West Rise Junior School 

In October 2019, we worked with the Cyber Prevent Team from the South East Regional Crime Unit who shared their 
expertise with local students and asked them to use their skills for good and highlighted the penalties of committing 
cyber offences. Bexhill College Students took part in an interactive Cyber Quiz and a Cyber Champions session in 
local schools involved years 7-9 participating in an unfolding cyber-attack. 

Recommissioning of the Substance Misuse Service in East Sussex – Following a competitive tendering process 
the contract for substance misuse treatment was awarded to Change Grow Live, who previously held the contract. 
The service commenced on 1 June 2019, and adopted an Asset Based Community Development Approach, which 
was person centred and holistic supporting those with substance misuse disorders to become as resilient as possible. 

Substance Misuse Recovery Communities – Through the Innovation Fund 2019/20, we commissioned five local 
projects to work in partnership to develop a ‘package of care’ for individuals in recovery from drug and alcohol misuse 
disorders, which meets a number of their needs and puts them at the centre of service delivery. These projects 
support vulnerable people and keep them safe. One of the projects provides specific support to those from the Armed 
Forces Community while another works to support the family and carers of those who have problems with drugs and 
alcohol. The final three embed the ethos of Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) into the daily lives of service 
users, staff and volunteers, providing people with a framework to explore what they can do to maintain their wellbeing. 

The team have also worked alongside commissioned projects and those projects which have grown organically from 
within the community using localised skills and experience, or grassroots funded, to increase their training, policy and 
practice around safeguarding work with services users and their families, in recovery. This included looking through 
engagement, interventions and opportunities to support clients to safely access social care or family help when they 
need it. Practice guidance supported by the clinical guidelines of the ‘Orange Book’ (2017) have anchored this 
process and the Safeguarding Co-ordinator for ASC was invited along to a meeting with local projects and services to 
share his knowledge of safeguarding and answer any questions. 

Page 35



APPENDIX 2 

In response to COVID-19, the substance misuse team and recovery services have published a plan of how services 
will be operating. The plan is hosted on the East Sussex Recovery Alliance website, and provides details of each 
service, contact details and any current changes. These plans may change with government guidance, so will be 
updated regularly. We are working together as a community and many services will still be taking new referrals over 
the phone or online. 

Domestic Violence and Abuse, Sexual Violence and Abuse, Stalking and Harassment and Harmful Practices – 
Brighton & Hove City Council and East Sussex County Council completed the strategic framework of the joint strategy 
to create an enhanced and coordinated response to domestic violence and abuse, sexual violence, and other forms of 
violence, including stalking and harassment and harmful practices in Q4, West Sussex County Council have 
subsequently joined the strategy meaning it now encompasses the whole of Sussex, but this has led to a delay in the 
delivery plan. Work on the delivery plan is expected to resume in Q1 2020/21 and the plan is scheduled to be 
available in summer 2020. Negotiations are ongoing regarding the governance arrangements for the strategy, in 
recognition that multi-agency accountability needs to be clarified. 

Public Health 

Public Health review – Despite the increase in the Public Health ring fenced grant for 2020/21 it is possible that the 
amount we receive will reduce in future, even if the grant itself continues. In response to this Public Health have 
undergone a comprehensive review of work programmes and priorities during 2019/20 to develop a core offer which: 

• achieves the best possible outcomes for residents and communities; 

• targets action where health inequality is greatest; and 

• makes the best use of our budget. 

Much work has taken place to develop some initial plans and proposals for consultation and this was set to take place 
during spring. The consultation has been deferred and will take place at an appropriate point in the future. 

Warm Home Check Service – The Warm Home Check service’s affordable warmth scheme provided advice to over 
2,300 people through its Keep Warm and Well helpline or drop-in locations. Although the service did not reach its 
target to deliver 600 Warm Home Check visits, it provided 483 vulnerable fuel poor households with this tailored home 
energy assessment along with thousands of small energy efficiency measures and interventions to help people keep 
warm and well. In addition, the service supported 212 households to switch energy tariff or supplier, supported 329 
households to receive the Warm Home Discount and enabled 170 people to sign up to the Priority Services Register. 
The estimated increase in household income for these and other measures provided is over £443,000. 

Using external funding awarded to the Council’s Public Health team, the service also delivered the National Grid’s 
Warm Homes Fund project to provide first time central heating to 46 eligible fuel poor homes. This included major 
home upgrades – first-time central health and cavity wall insulation – to a block of flats in St Leonards-on-Sea 
occupied by residents eligible for a tenancy through being older people on low incomes. Clients participating in 
evaluation surveys reported that their self-rated level of warmth and health had significantly improved. 

East Sussex Health and Social Care transformation plans – Working with partners from across the system we 
developed the East Sussex Health and Social Care transformation plans for preventing and reducing inequalities 
which range from addressing the wider determinants of health to tertiary prevention of disease. A key element of the 
prevention plan was to identify which elements of prevention are most relevant to and in the control of each element 
of the health and care system, as well as ensuring the prevention element of the transformation plan captures and 
complements the work of the existing public health led multi-agency partnership boards (Healthy Weight, Tobacco 
and Alcohol) already leading prevention of behavioural drivers of poor health and health inequalities. This process has 
catalysed discussions about reporting and accountability, ensuring the partnerships are included in the health and 
social care governance structure and that their roles in improving the health and wellbeing of the population in East 
Sussex is maximised. 

Making it Happen (MiH) programme – The MiH programme aims to increase social connection through neighbour-
to-neighbour relationship building. It also aims to develop the confidence and capability of people to come together in 
their neighbourhoods to create positive change and to tackle local issues that matter to them most. MiH is being 
delivered in a partnership led by the Sussex Community Development Association with 3VA; Hastings Voluntary 
Action, Rother Voluntary Action and Action in Rural Sussex. 

Revenue Budget Summary 

Public Health 

The Public Health (PH) budget of £26.766m comprises the PH grant allocation of £26.550m, CCG funding of £0.070m 
and £0.146m drawn from reserves to support in year spending. In addition to the PH grant there is a planned draw of 
£0.866m to meet one off projects. 

ASC 

Page 36

https://www.esrauk.org/Handlers/Download.ashx?IDMF=c364cc4c-9278-44f2-864f-1701d957ef5f


APPENDIX 2 

The net Adult social Care budget of £170.552m includes growth and demography funding and an inflationary uplift to 
support the independent sector care market. 

The budget overspent by £0.657m, comprising of £0.730m in the Independent Sector, offset by a small underspend of 
£0.73m in Directly Provided Services. While the Independent Sector budget overspent slightly, the budget faces 
continued risk on expenditure for working age adults due to the ongoing impact of high cost packages of care 
transferring from the NHS from Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and the national Transforming Care Programme (TCP). 
These pressures have been mitigated in part in 2019/20 by use of one-off funding form the Better Care Fund (BCF), a 
constructive review of the process for Continuing Healthcare assessments and cost-sharing agreements for clients 
discharged under Section 117 with NHS partners. 

In June 2018, cabinet approved savings of £9.631m, representing a significant reduction to the budget. The full year 
impact of these savings is now being realised. The 2019/20 budget is shown net of further savings £0.730m to meet 
the Council’s Core Offer. The savings will be delivered in a full year, however, as in previous years the full cash 
saving will not be achieved within 2019/20, reflecting that the proposals will need to be implemented in line with 
statutory responsibilities and duties. The part year impact of the savings proposals is reflected in the outturn position.  

Capital Programme Summary 

The ASC Capital Programme was £2.247m, all funding the Greenacres development: a LD residential service in 
South Chailey. The scheme is to develop a new service on the Greenacres site to meet the needs of people with a 
learning disability and/or autism with behaviour that challenges who are part of the Transforming Care cohort. NHS 
England Capital Grant (Transforming Care Capital Funding stream) will constitute part of the funding for this project. 
The project will be completed and delivered within the overall budget in 2020/21. 

 

Performance exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure 
Outturn 

18/19 
Target 19/20 

19/20 RAG 
2019/20 outturn 

Note 
ref Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Priority – Keeping vulnerable people safe 

The proportion of people who use services 
who say that those services have made 
them feel safe and secure (Adult Social 
Care Survey)  

87.6% 87.0% G G G R 83.0% i 

When they leave the service the % of 
those affected by rape, sexual violence 
and abuse who have improved coping 
strategies  

80% 88% G G G CO 96% (Q3)  

The % of people affected by domestic 
violence and abuse who feel safe upon 
leaving the service 

88% 88% G G G CO 98% (Q3)  

Priority – Helping people to help themselves 

Percentage of Health and Social Care 
Connect contacts that are appropriate and 
effective (i.e. lead to the provision of 
necessary additional services)  

96.8% 95.0% G G G CO 97% (Q3)  

Percentage of Health and Social Care 
Connect referrals triaged and progressed 
to required services within required 
timescales  

85.6% 90% G G G R 84.0% (Q3) ii 

Number of new service user interventions 
commenced as part of the Integrated 
Lifestyle Service 

7,043 6,000 AD G G CO 4,849 (Q3)  

Cumulative percentage of the eligible 
population who have received an NHS 
health check since 2015/16 (five year 
period) 

51.7% 50% G G G CO 47.6% (Q3)  

 

Page 37



APPENDIX 2 

Savings exceptions 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Note 
ref 

Original 
Target For 

2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Working Age Adults: Nursing, Residential and 
Community Based services 

247 247 124 123 -  

Meals in the Community 483 483 - 483 -  

Savings c/f from 2018/19 - 6,087 6,087 - -  

Total Savings 730 6,817 6,211 606 0  

   - - -  

   - - -  

   - - -  

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0  

Total Savings and Permanent Changes 0 0 0 0 0  

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Total Note Ref  

Working Age Adults: Nursing, Residential and 
Community Based services 

- 123 123   

Meals in the Community - 483 483   

 - - -   

Total 0 606 606   

 

Revenue budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Adult Social Care:  

IS - Physical Support, 
Sensory Support and 
Support for Memory & 
Cognition 

114,795 (43,650) 71,145 108,573 (42,343) 66,230 6,222 (1,307) 4,915  

IS - Learning Disability 
Support 

56,941 (4,302) 52,639 63,992 (6,256) 57,736 (7,051) 1,954 (5,097)  

IS - Mental Health Support 7,436 (1,042) 6,394 8,286 (1,344) 6,942 (850) 302 (548)  

Subtotal Independent 
Sector 

179,172 (48,994) 130,178 180,851 (49,943) 130,908 (1,679) 949 (730)  

Physical Support, Sensory 
Support and Support for 
Memory & Cognition 

15,926 (5,071) 10,855 16,109 (4,576) 11,533 (183) (495) (678)  

Learning Disability Support 6,958 (654) 6,304 7,267 (964) 6,303 (309) 310 1  

Mental Health Support 3,163 (3,139) 24 3,186 (3,163) 23 (23) 24 1  

Substance Misuse Support 591 (115) 476 477 (1) 476 114 (114) -  

Equipment & Assistive 
Technology 

5,709 (2,751) 2,958 6,124 (3,524) 2,600 (415) 773 358  

Other 3,256 (2,142) 1,114 1,635 (889) 746 1,621 (1,253) 368  

Supporting People 6,448 (310) 6,138 6,759 (620) 6,139 (311) 310 (1)  

Assessment and Care 
Management 

25,825 (2,850) 22,975 26,597 (3,622) 22,975 (772) 772 -  

Management and Support 16,014 (26,775) (10,761) 15,213 (26,341) (11,128) 801 (434) 367  

Service Strategy 735 (444) 291 1,016 (382) 634 (281) (62) (343)  

Page 38



APPENDIX 2 

Revenue budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Subtotal Directly 
Provided Services and 
Assessment and Care 
Management 

84,625 (44,251) 40,374 84,383 (44,082) 40,301 242 (169) 73  

Total Adult Social Care 263,797 (93,245) 170,552 265,234 (94,025) 171,209 (1,437) 780 (657)  

 

Safer Communities 583 (247) 336 846 (510) 336 (263) 263 0  

 

Public Health  

Health Improvement 
Services 

4,706 - 4,706 4,618 - 4,618 88 - 88  

Drug and Alcohol Services 6,101 - 6,101 5,909 - 5,909 192 - 192  

Sexual Health Services 4,335 - 4,335 4,354 - 4,354 (19) - (19)  

Health Visiting and School 
Nursing  

9,329 - 9,329 8,868 - 8,868 461 - 461  

NHS Health Checks 1,026 - 1,026 612 - 612 414 - 414  

Management Support and 
Public Health Programmes 

2,729 - 2,729 2,693 - 2,693 36 - 36  

Public Health Grant income - (26,550) (26,550) - (26,550) (26,550) - - -  

Public Health CCG and 
Reimbursement income 

- (70) (70) - (281) (281) - 211 211  

Contribution from General 
Reserves 

- (1,606) (1,606) - (223) (223) - (1,383) (1,383)  

Sub Total for Core 
Services 

28,226 (28,226) 0 27,054 (27,054) 0 1,172 (1,172) 0  

 

One Off Projects Funded 
from Project Reserve 

866 (866) - 748 (748) - 118 (118) -  

Total Public Health 29,092 (29,092) 0 27,802 (27,802) 0 1,290 (1,290) 0  

 

Capital programme 

Approved project 

Total project – all 
years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) Note 
ref End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 
budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

 

Greenacres 2,598 2,598 2,234 2,234 - - - -  

OP/LD Service 
Improvements/Housing 
Adaptations 

7,811 7,813 13 13 - - - -  

Total ASC Gross 10,409 10,411 2,247 2,247 0 0 0 0  

 

Page 39



APPENDIX 3 

 

Business Services – end of year 2019/20 

Summary of progress on Council Priorities, issues arising, and achievements 

2019/20 Summary of successes and achievements –  

The Services 2 Schools Conference, which took place in Q4, saw 171 delegates attend, a record number, and an 
increase of 60% since 2018. Of the 171 delegates, 51 were Headteachers with the rest consisting of Academy and 
Maintained Schools Business Managers or Finance Officers. 

The 2018/19 Statement of Accounts was published on the Council’s website with an unqualified audit opinion from the 
Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton). An adjustment to the accounts had to be made to reflect a revised 
assessment of pension liabilities, this issue affected a number of local authorities. 

A refresh of the property Strategic Asset Plan 2020-2025 was approved by Lead Member in Q4. The Council has 
published eight asset management policies dealing with the way it manages its property assets; including 
acquisitions, leasing, compliance, maintenance, sustainable buildings, disposals, community asset transfer and 
carbon. In addition, the plan establishes some clear principles in how we will manage our land and buildings. 

IT and Digital have refreshed and upgraded a number of systems across the services, especially supporting 
Children’s Services during Ofsted visits. In response to the initial COVID-19 outbreak at the end of Q4, IT and Digital 
were able to quickly turnaround the necessary devices and equipment to help support staff at this critical time, largely 
benefiting from the recent Windows upgrade programme.  

During Q2, the Council joined over 150 other local authorities in signing up to the Local Digital Declaration. The 
declaration sets out how the authorities will aim to co-create the conditions for the next generation of local public 
services, where technology is an enabler to service improvements and organisations share a vision to deliver more 
user-centred, cost effective local public services through open, collaborative and reusable work. 

Feasibility studies are being developed for seven key sites as part of Property Asset Investment Strategy, exceeding 
the target for the year of four (ref i). 

The Council reduced the amount of CO2 from its operations in 2019/20 by 4.8%, exceeding the target of 3%. This 
breaks down as a 4.9% reduction from schools and a 4.8% reduction from the corporate estate. Annual targets from 
2020/21 have been revised to ensure they align with the Council’s Climate Emergency Plan. 

Apprenticeships – The Department for Education published data regarding public sector engagement and uptake 
from the first two years of the Apprenticeship Levy (2017/18 and 2018/19) in November 2019, which showed the 
Council had spent 24% of our total levy contributions from April 2017. In 2017/18, we spent 6.5% of the contributions 
for the year. This increased to 31% in 2018/19 and is set to rise above 50% in 2019/20. 

Against the national target of 2.3% of the workforce undertaking an apprenticeship, for 2018/19 we had 136 new 
apprenticeship starts, up from 111 in 2017/18, which gave an outturn of 1.8%, an increase on the previous year. On a 
cumulative basis, our performance over the two years of 2017/18 and 2018/19 provides an outturn of 1.2%. This puts 
us joint fourth highest amongst county councils. 

It has been agreed that administration and management apprenticeships standards will automatically be added to 
relevant job descriptions when Council vacancies are advertised. These roles would encourage vocational learning 
among new starters. A considerable amount of work has been done with our local Schools to help them maximise 
their use of the Levy and over 100 apprenticeships have been created in Schools since the Levy started in 2017. 

From April 2019, levy payers have been able to transfer up to 25% of their annual apprenticeship spend to non-levy 
paying small and medium employers. We are supporting local businesses in East Sussex by offering apprenticeships 
in key areas of skills and employment shortages in the county as identified by Skills East Sussex. 

Savings achieved through procurement, contract and supplier management activities – At the end of Q4 we 
have signed off £9.1m savings against our £8m target. This breaks down into £3.8m cash-releasing savings (which is 
money saved that could have been spent on other services) and £5.3m non cash-releasing savings (a financial saving 
e.g. cost avoidance, that does not release cash). We have a pipeline in place for 2020/21 and will continue working 
with colleagues across the Council to meet and exceed our targeted benefits. The present challenges relating to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, which are negatively affecting market conditions and creating economic uncertainty, will 
however make this more difficult. 

The Council has spent £208.9m with local suppliers over the past 12 months. 1,080 local suppliers were used, which 
equates to 54% of our total spend. 

In Q2, the three Orbis partners delivered a new contract where all of the electricity used by ESCC, including all 40,000 
of the Council’s street lights, libraries and Council buildings, will come from renewable sources from April 2020. This 
will also deliver savings in the region of £100k per year. 

Social Value – The East Sussex Social Value Marketplace; which allows Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
organisations working in communities to post requests for help on an online platform, which can then be considered 

Page 40



APPENDIX 3 

 

by businesses and organisations; was publicly launched in November 2019. The Marketplace went on to win Social 
Innovation of the year at the National Social Value Awards in January 2020. 

In Q4, a total of 12 contracts were awarded. Eight contracts were out of scope as they formed part of larger, 
predefined frameworks and thus the Social Value Charter could not be applied. The four in-scope contracts had a 
total value of £4.9m and secured £412k of social value commitment, which equates to an outturn of 8.4%. Overall in 
2019/20, we awarded 45 contracts. 19 were in scope and totalled £46.5m, of which £4.9m was secured as social 
value, a 10.5% return. The social value commitments in 2019/20 span a range of areas, including environmental 
training to SME's in sustaining green spaces, and sensory training for NHS and other frontline staff in British Sign 
Language. Initiatives to reduce carbon emissions and decrease single use plastic were also started. There were also 
apprenticeships, placements for young carers, support for charities and campaigns for sustainable food practices. 

Internal audit – 95% of the high-risk actions due, have been implemented by management within agreed timescales, 
slightly below the agreed target of 97%. We are working with management to understand and address why a small 
number of actions have not been met and to agree revised dates for implementation where appropriate.  

Insurance claims – in Q4 97% of liability claims were handled to first decision (i.e. initial repudiation or offer of 
compensation) within the relevant legal time frames, above the 95% target. A majority of third-party claims relate to 
the highway and these are now handled by East Sussex Highways (Costain Jacobs). Information relating to these 
claims is included in these figures. There were three claims handled outside protocol administered by East Sussex 
Highways, during a period when claims volumes increased significantly, and one by the Council’s Legal Services. We 
will continue to monitor this situation and liaise with East Sussex Highways with the aim of continuing to meet the 
target in 2020/21. 

Property operations – The baseline data, used to determine the cost of occupancy of corporate buildings, has been 
updated throughout the year as the original baseline figure was based on largely historic datasets. The strategic 
review of Corporate Offices, which took place during 2019/20, has provided additional details and allowed us to 
establish more accurate set of property costs. The target for 2019/20 has been missed (ref ii). 

Property Strategy (SPACES) – The Strategic Property Asset Collaboration in East Sussex (SPACES) partnership 
continues to deliver the One Public Estate (OPE) projects, having received £760,000 of Government funding across 
Phases 5, 6 and 7. The projects are geographically spread across all East Sussex district and boroughs, with 
activities varying from emergency services colocation to town centre regeneration. This is in line with the more recent 
focus of exploring how the partnership can enable and drive wider outcomes such as town centre regeneration and 
housing development. To support the development of the programme, new Programme Manager and Programme 
Support roles were successfully recruited to. Some of the projects relating to emergency service co-locations have 
been delayed due to changes to partner strategies and asset requirements following announcements such as 
increasing police force numbers. 

OPE Phase 8 and Land Release Fund (LRF) Phase 2 funded streams were expected to be launched in Q3, however 
they were postponed due to the general election and subsequent changes in Government. It is likely that these 
funding opportunities will both be postponed until Q3 2020/21, in the meantime SPACES continue to consider 
potential projects that could be selected for future submission.  

As reported in Q3, SPACES looked at developing a place-based focus, recognising where multiple activities are 
taking place in one area, and where they can be complementary to each other by making key decisions across 
projects. Aligned to this approach, and in the context of the Council developing our asset strategy, the Council met 
with each district and borough council during Q2 and Q3 to consider opportunities in each geographical area, with 
next steps and actions agreed with each council. 

During Q4, stakeholder engagement sessions took place with SPACES partners to help shape a new SPACES 
Programme Strategy targeted for completion in 2020/21. This will take into account common priority themes across 
the partnership; including increased sharing of best practice and resources and reducing our carbon footprint through 
our asset management and activities.  

The value of benefits delivered by SPACES (a total across all SPACES partners) at the end of Q4 was over £19m, 
with another £2.6m identified within planned projects. 

Property Strategy – During Q4, other than the approval for the Strategic Asset Plan refresh as mentioned in the 
summary of successes and achievements, further work has been pursued on the development of options for our 
Corporate and Administrative offices, especially as there are some leases about to expire and reported low levels of 
utilisation. Whilst COVID-19 has interrupted progress at the tail end of Q4, it nevertheless has highlighted wider 
benefits of different ways of working for the future. 

Property Investment – Feasibility and Town planning work has continued across a number of key sites. Our St 
Anne’s site is subject to ongoing workshops with the South Downs National Park Authority which we are looking to 
move forward to enable stakeholder engagement, before planning applications later in the year. Feasibility studies for 
our sites at Etchingham and Southview Close Crowbrough have been finalised to enable us to bring forward option 
papers. Our Hindsland site at Polegate is under discussions for a medical centre and care development. Our 
Helenswood campus in Hastings has now been fully demolished and feasibility work conducted around potential for a 

Page 41



APPENDIX 3 

 

care development which is aligned to ongoing adult service reviews. Our former household waste recycling sites at 
Forest Row and Wadhurst are subject to discussion and options with key stakeholders 

IT & Digital – Q4 saw the continuing refresh of devices, which gathered pace in providing underpinning support to 
Children's Services colleagues throughout an Ofsted visit. It then accelerated in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Having concluded the Windows 7 replacement, IT & Digital had moved on to refreshing Windows 8 devices 
along with concluding the Exchange migration to move staff onto O365 email. Both projects proved helpful to equip a 
rapid response as COVID-19 caused an unprecedented demand for technology services. The wide availability of 
Windows 10 and O365 enabled a large proportion of our workforce to work remotely. The implementation of Citrix 
also allowed others to work at home from their personal PCs. 

Work to re-procure the current Link Wide Area Network (WAN) has progressed as the current contract is due to end in 
December 2022. East Sussex hosts the Consortium and provides a client function that acts as a representative 
between the consortium members and the suppliers. A review of the marketplace has been underway to inform the 
strategic options and an engagement day with prospective suppliers has been held. 

Modernising Systems – A Modernising Back Office Systems Programme has been established to deliver the 
replacement of the Councils financial, resource management and property asset management systems. Replacement 
of these systems will be supporting further developments to increased agile and digital working. Market engagement 
is taking place and recommendations for new systems will be in 2020/21. 

Attendance Management and Wellbeing – The 2019/20 sickness absence outturn for the whole authority (excluding 
schools) is 8.48 days lost per FTE, a decrease of 2.9% since the previous year. The target of 9.24 days/FTE has 
therefore been met. This is the lowest sickness level since records formally started in 2006. 

Although this decrease in absence is positive, mental health continues to be the primary driver of absence and a 
number of targeted initiatives have been put in place to help reduce such absences. A targeted ‘Time to TALK about 
Mental Health’ campaign was launched on 10 October 2019 with the aim of removing the stigma surrounding mental 
health and increasing confidence across the Council to address poor mental health in the workplace. This campaign 
forms the central touchstone of our dedicated mental health strategy; national awareness days and key policies, and 
will continue to be promoted within this established framework. Almost 100 members of staff have now been trained 
as accredited Mental Health First Aiders (MHFA). A small additional cohort of staff have also been trained as 
accredited MHFA instructors, which qualifies them to deliver future MHFA training within the Council. This will enable 
us to grow our internal MHFA community in a cost-effective way. A new Stress Risk Assessment process has been 
introduced to encourage meaningful conversations between managers and employees and provide signposting both 
in and out of work. 

Time lost due to mental health related absence has also increased in schools. A comprehensive Mental Health offer 
has therefore been launched for Schools to support them. This has been well received by Headteachers and Trade 
Unions. 

Business Operations –Teams have continued work on the improvement programme, which has seen reporting 
enhancements and improvements to self-service forms, creating increased monitoring capabilities and resource 
savings, whilst also providing enhanced management information for customers. The introduction of automated 
commercial debt collection monitoring has seen a reduction in write offs and an increase in invoice collection via direct 
debits.  

The Services 2 Schools conference saw a number of new services launched, including a 3-year building maintenance 
package and a range of school website development offers which generated sales. Feedback from the event was 
positive, with 94% of attendees saying they would recommend the event to colleagues in future years. The team also 
placed a particular focus on facilitating buyback from Maintained schools throughout March, with a total of £6,499,164 
sales completed before the end of Q4. However, as a result of the impacts from COVID-19, a planned review of the 
school purchasing platform has been put on hold, so it does not disrupt Academy buyback during Q2 2020/21. 

Service review recommendations highlighted four areas of Business Operations which needed improvement in 
2019/20; strategy & leadership, staff experience, financial planning and performance monitoring. There has been 
progress against all aspect of the review with; a new role to drive a performance culture approved; initiatives to 
address staff experience issues created; and a greater leadership presence. These improvements will be shared with 
staff and progressed in 2020/21.  

Revenue Budget Summary – The 2019/20 Business Services net revenue budget is £23.2m, including the £13.9m 
contribution to the Orbis budget and efficiency savings of £1.003m. The full year estimated outturn is an underspend 
of £0.135m. This is due to a £0.105m overspend in budgets managed on behalf of East Sussex County Council 
(ESCC) by Orbis, offset by a £0.241m underspend on the contribution to the jointly funded Orbis budget. 

The overspend in budgets managed on behalf of ESCC by Orbis is due mainly to an emergent overspend within 
ESCC Property Services resulting from expenditure incurred funding Lewes Castle Wall, as well as emergent 
overspends in ground maintenance, cleaning and school meals contracts, all of which are currently subject to an 
internal review working towards establishing a balanced position for 2020/21. 

Page 42



APPENDIX 3 

 

The Orbis operating budget is in its fourth year and has challenging savings targets of £3.181m this year. This is in 
addition to the £9.713m (or 17% of budget) annual ongoing savings already achieved. The changes to the Orbis 
model have also added to the uncertainty of the Orbis budgets. Following a review of variances in February 2020 an 
agreement was reached between Orbis partners for sovereign partner budgets fully to fund large variances, where 
those variances were driven wholly by sovereign activity, most notably in SCC Finance and BHCC Property. This has 
reduced ESCC’s net contribution to the partnership from 22.9% to 22.6%. Furthermore, emergent underspends within 
Orbis services, due primarily to ongoing vacancies and delays in planned recruitment, have reduced the net 
partnership budget to an underspend of £0.029m. 

Capital Programme Summary – The 2019/20 capital budget is £37.000m and includes the £17.431m Schools Basic 
Need Programme and the £7.140m Building Improvements programme. The full year estimated variance is slippage 
of £3.027m and a spend in advance of £3.001m. The slippage relates in part to £1.233m slippage in the Schools 
Basic Need programme as a result of delays due to bad weather. There is also significant slippage of £0.850 in the 
Lansdown Unit a result of a more detailed profile of delivery following the contractors being on-site. The slippage of 
£0.203m in the Special Provision in Secondary School programme results from delays due to ground conditions and 
planning issues. Reported slippage of £0.900m at Q3 in the Schools Maintenance Programme has reduced to 
£0.475m due to accelerated works undertaken at half-term. The Schools Basic Need spend in advance of £1.635m 
relates to a revised contractor valuation for Reef Way in Hailsham and the re-profiling of expenditure previously 
projected to be incurred early in 2020/21 back into 2019/20. The IT&D spend in advance of £0.744m is due to the 
accelerated procurement of core IT&D infrastructure and laptops to mitigate against expected future price increases. 
The spend in advance of £0.622m relates to the bringing forward of additional projects undertaken throughout Q4. 

 

Performance Exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure Outturn 18/19 Target 19/20 
19/20 RAG 

2019/20 outturn Note Ref 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Priority – Making best use of resources 

Deliver the Property Asset 
Investment Strategy 

Resource model 
in place 

Development 
of feasibility 
studies for a 

minimum of 4 
key sites 

G A A G 
Feasibility studies 
in development for 

7 key projects  
i 

Cost of occupancy of 
corporate buildings per sq. 
metre 

£151.49 / sq. 
metre 

£148.46 / sq 
metre 

A A A R £161.98 ii 

 

Page 43



APPENDIX 3 

 

Savings exceptions 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Note 
ref 

Original 
Target For 

2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

All planned savings 1,003 1,003 1,003 - -  

 - - - - -  

 - - - - -  

Total Savings 0 0 1,003 0 0  

   - - -  

   - - -  

   - - -  

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0  

Total Savings and Permanent Changes 0 0 1,003 0 0  

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Total Note Ref  

 - - -   

 - - -   

 - - -   

Total 0 0 0   

 

Revenue Budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Business Operations - - 0 36 (49) (13) (36) 49 13  

Finance 2,505 (1,720) 785 3,114 (2,329) 785 (609) 609 -  

Management and 
Support 

278 (278) - 247 (260) (13) 31 (18) 13  

HR & OD 356 (404) (48) 402 (451) (49) (46) 47 1  

IT & Digital 5,865 (2,520) 3,345 5,884 (2,660) 3,224 (19) 140 121  

Procurement - (80) (80) - (160) (160) - 80 80  

Property 24,612 (19,251) 5,361 22,153 (16,458) 5,695 2,459 (2,793) (334)  

Contribution to Orbis 
Partnership 

13,885 - 13,885 13,644 - 13,644 241 - 241  

Total BSD 47,501 (24,253) 23,248 45,480 (22,367) 23,113 2,021 (1,886) 135  

 

Revenue Budget  

Divisions Planned (£000) 
2019/20 (£000) Note 

ref End of year outturn (Over) / under spend  
Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net  

Business Operations 13,149 (7,370) 5,779 13,509 (7,637) 5,872 (360) 267 (93)  

Finance 12,684 (2,298) 10,386 13,486 (2,635) 10,851 (802) 337 (465)  

HR&OD 7,192 (1,399) 5,793 7,204 (1,401) 5,803 (12) 2 (10)  

IT&D 22,975 (3,040) 19,935 23,297 (3,802) 19,495 (322) 762 440  

Management 2,316 - 2,316 2,055 - 2,055 261 - 261  

Procurement 4,916 (235) 4,681 4,668 (200) 4,468 248 (35) 213  

Property 12,963 (1,473) 11,490 13,093 (1,286) 11,807 (130) (187) (317)  

Total Orbis  76,195 (15,815) 60,380 77,312 (16,961) 60,351 (1,117) 1,146 29  

 

ESCC Contribution    13,885   13,644   241  

 

Page 44



APPENDIX 3 

 

Capital programme 

Approved project 

Total project – all 
years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 

Note 
ref 

End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 
budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

SALIX Contract 3,868 3,855 283 270 13 13 - -  

Property Agile Works 9,713 9,713 286 21 265 - 265 -  

Capital Building 
Improvements 

81,445 81,445 7,140 7,287 (147) - 475 (622)  

IT & Digital Strategy 
Implementation 

31,543 31,543 5,132 5,876 (744) - - (744)  

Schools Basic Need 135,524 135,524 17,431 17,833 (402) - 1,233 (1,635)  

Early Years 2,480 2,480 35 35 - - - -  

Universal Infant Free 
School Meals 

1,901 1,901 - - - - - -  

Special Provision in 
Secondary School 

2,350 2,350 350 146 204 - 204 -  

Lansdown Unit (CSD) 7,600 7,600 6,343 5,493 850 - 850 -  

Total BSD Gross 276,424 276,411 37,000 36,961 39 13 3,027 (3,001)  

 
 

Page 45



APPENDIX 4 

Children’s Services – end of year 2019/20 

Summary of progress on Council Priorities, issues arising, and achievements 

2019/20 Summary of successes and achievements 

Early Years – 86% of eligible 2-year olds accessed a funded place at an eligible early years provider in the spring 
2019 funding period, higher than the current national average of 68%. In academic year 2018/19, 76% of pupils 
achieved a good level of development at the Early Years Foundation Stage, above the national average of 71.8%. The 
achievement gap between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation stage and the rest was 30.1%, 
which is lower than the national gap of 32.4%. 

Key Stage 1 – In academic year 2018/19 outcomes at Key Stage 1 in reading, writing and mathematics at the 
expected and greater depth standards were all above the national average. At the expected standard, outcomes for 
disadvantaged pupils in all three subjects were above those of disadvantaged pupils nationally. In addition, outcomes 
for pupils with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) in all three subjects, at the expected and greater 
depth standards were above those seen for the same groups nationally. 

Participation in education, training or employment with training: 

• The percentage of young people either participating in education, training or employment with training, or 
undertaking re-engagement provision, at academic age 16 (year 12) was 93.7% and at academic age 17 (year 13) 
was 86.3%. Both were on target. 

• 1.2% of academic age 16 – 17 year olds education, employment and training (EET) status are not known (against a 
target of less than 3%). 

• The percentage of LAC participating in education, training or employment with training was above the target for 
both academic age 16, at 84% (59/70) and academic age 17, at 78% (49/63). 

• 10.53% of eligible care leavers are at university. 

Overall effectiveness judgement of schools – The most recent overall effectiveness judgement for schools 
inspected, at 30 August 2019 by phase of education and local authority, places East Sussex 27 th across all schools in 
the Ofsted league of schools that are good or outstanding. In August 2014 East Sussex was ranked 130th out of 152. 

Mental Health Support Teams working in schools and colleges – East Sussex Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) and the Council were successful in bidding to become a trailblazer in the implementation of new Mental Health 
Support Teams (MHSTs) in schools. This is an additional resource aimed at building greater capacity to support more 
children with Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing needs. As these new teams will be focussed around schools, this 
provides us with an excellent opportunity to build on the whole-school work on mental health and emotional wellbeing 
that is already underway and align it with support pathways for individual children. For East Sussex, we were awarded 
funding for three MHSTs covering in total approximately 24,000 pupils / 60 schools in the following areas: High Weald 
Lewes Havens CCG area – Havens Locality; Eastbourne Hailsham Seaford CCG area – South Downs Locality; 
Hastings and Rother CCG area – Rother Alliance Partnership, Rye, Bexhill Primary Partnership 

Excellence for All strategy – We published our updated Excellence for All strategy 2019-21 which outlines the 
shared vision, values and ambitions the local authority and our partners have for creating an excellent education 
system in East Sussex where no pupil or educational establishment is left behind. There is a sharper focus on the 
most disadvantaged and on how we will deliver improvement through the partnership structures in the county. The 
priorities set out in the strategy were developed in partnership with schools and settings and will be delivered through 
our school-led system for improvement. The secondary and primary boards are now well established, and schools are 
working together to deliver the aims of the strategy, supported by the teaching school network in the county. 

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND): 

• During 2019/20 88.5% of children and young people have given their views and/or participated in their annual 
Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) review meeting. 

• 75% of respondents to the feedback surveys agree that things have changed for the better as a result of ISEND 
Education Services. 

• The Education Support, Behaviour & Attendance Service has been training staff in the principles of ‘Therapeutic 
Thinking’ and this approach was rolled out to the first cohort of schools in January 2020, which is led by our ESBAS 
team. Fifteen schools have been trained and a further eight recruited to the second cohort which began in March. 
These include primary and secondary schools. The Therapeutic Thinking approach is a school-led embedded 
ethos:  

• to support settings with developing a therapeutic approach to behaviour; 

Page 46



APPENDIX 4 

• to promote the inseparable link between teaching, learning and behaviour; 

• a school /county wide strategy for a therapeutic and trauma informed approach to inclusion and managing 
behaviour; and 

• it is an inclusive culture, led by Leadership and Management based on training and information that is 
underpinned by policy and plans. 

Joint targeted area inspection of the multi-agency responses to children’s mental health in East Sussex – This 
joint inspection was undertaken by Ofsted, the Care Quality Commission (Health), Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (Police) and HMI Probation (YOT). This joint inspection included an 
evaluation of the ‘front door’ and how agencies identify and respond to the inspection theme of children’s mental 
health. The Inspection Letter published in April, does not include an overall judgement, it sets out the areas of strength 
across the partnership and areas for improvement. The report notes that ‘Partnership arrangements in East Sussex 
are well established and effective … Assessments of children’s needs are of consistently good quality across a range 
of agencies within the partnership. They are comprehensive, consider history and demonstrate an in-depth 
understanding of emotional well-being and mental health needs.’ The report also noted that ‘Leaders have continued 
to develop existing services to meet a greater range of children’s emotional and well-being needs and have created 
new services to address emerging or lower levels of need. This work is supported by a highly effective Safeguarding 
Children Partnership and Health and Wellbeing Board.’ The inspectors found that some areas of multi-agency working 
could be further strengthened. They also noted that most of these areas are already a focus within strategic and 
operational plans to improve outcomes for children. We will be developing a multi-agency action plan to address these 
areas which will be reported to Cabinet, the Health and Wellbeing Board, and East Sussex Safeguarding Children’s 
Board. 

Takeover Day/Children and Young People’s Trust (CYPT) Partnership event – The theme of this year’s event was 
‘focus on youth voice’ based on feedback from children, young people and partners who attended the CYPT and 
Takeover Day events in 2018. The event was hosted by Children’s Services and the Youth Cabinet with support from 
the East Sussex Youth Voice Practitioners Network. More than 70 leaders and practitioners from across a range of 
partnerships attended as well as more than 50 young people before and during the event. The groups involved were: 
the elected Youth Cabinet; the Children in Care Council; Seaford Youth Forum; Hastings Youth Council; Differences 
Group; Newhaven Young People’s Group; and The Able Group. All of the youth voice groups presented updates on 
their work and ran a workshop focussing on youth engagement best practice and how partners can improve 
meaningful engagement. The young people discussed the priorities for the new Youth Cabinet campaigns for 2020. 
The campaigns will focus on ‘Protecting the Environment’ and ‘Tackling Knife Crime’.  

Initial health assessments for Looked After Children (LAC) – Performance for the proportion of initial health 
assessments for LAC completed within 20 days has improved from 43% (76/176) in March 2019 to 77% (115/150) 
March 2020. The percentage completed within 25 days has increased from 61% (107/176) at March 2019 to 81% 
(122/150) at March 2020. This will remain an area of focus. 

Revenue Budget Summary – At Q4 the department has overspent by £5.797m (ref v). This is a small decrease of 
£0.056m from the Q3 forecast. 

The overspend is, as reported in previous quarters, in two main areas. In Early Help and Social Care (ref iii), there 
have been continuing pressures on care placements and difficulties in sourcing accommodation for families in need 
within Locality. In Education and ISEND (ref iv) the pressures have continued in residential facilities and disability 
agency placements where unplanned complex high need pupils have required placements with additional support. 
These overspends have continued to be offset by efficiencies and by a reduction in expenditure on legal fees in 
Central Resources (ref ii).  

Within the above outturn position, £2.382m (ref i) of the £3.640m savings planned 2019/20 have been achieved, with 
the remainder mitigated through temporary funding. These savings figures also include £2.591m of savings brought 
forward from 2018/19. 

Capital Programme Summary – spending for the year has remained broadly on track. The Conquest Centre project 
spending has slipped by £0.068m (ref vii), and this will be used for retention, gates and some fire related works. In 
Home Adaptations (a demand led budget) there are potentially five more cases that have now slipped to next year (ref 
vi). 
 

 

Performance exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure Outturn 18/19 Target 19/20 
19/20 RAG 

2019/20 outturn 
Note 
Ref Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No exceptions at Q4 

 

Page 47

https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50150001
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50150001


APPENDIX 4 

Savings exceptions 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Note 
ref 

Original 
Target For 

2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Schools Learning and Effectiveness Service 
(SLES): promote high standards 

124 124 124 - -  

SLES: Performance monitoring 725 725 725 - -  

SLES: Clerking Service 158 158 158 - -  

Home to School Transport 42 42 42 - -  

Support Services, including Admissions, Buzz 
and Music service 

- 10 10 - -  

SWIFT and YOT - 166 166 - -  

ISEND and ESBAS - 831 570 261 -  

Early Help - 1,561 564 997 -  

Safeguarding - 23 23 - -  

Total Savings 1,049 3,640 2,382 1,258 0  

   - - -  

   - - -  

   - - -  

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0  

Total Savings and Permanent Changes 1,049 3,640 2,382 1,258 0 i 

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Total Note Ref  

Reform Grant 261 - 261   

Corporate Reserves 997 - 997   

 - - -   

Total 1,258 0 1,258   

 

Revenue budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Central Resources 1,727 (1,578) 149 1,776 (2,758) (982) (49) 1,180 1,131 ii 

Early Help and Social Care 60,956 (10,032) 50,924 68,182 (11,573) 56,609 (7,226) 1,541 (5,685) iii 

Education and ISEND 84,298 (5,465) 78,833 86,724 (6,937) 79,787 (2,426) 1,472 (954) iv 

Communication, Planning 
and Performance 

21,155 (4,450) 16,705 20,197 (3,203) 16,994 958 (1,247) (289)  

DSG non Schools - (69,291) (69,291) - (69,291) (69,291) - - -  

Schools 153,809 (153,809) - 153,809 (153,809) - - - -  

Total Children’s Services 321,945 (244,625) 77,320 330,688 (247,571) 83,117 (8,743) 2,946 (5,797) v 

 

Page 48



APPENDIX 4 

Capital programme 

Approved project 
Total project – all 

years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) Note 
ref End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

 Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 
budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

 

House Adaptations for 
Disabled Children's 
Carers 

1,057 1,003 67 13 54 - 54 - vi 

Diploma Exemplar 
Programme 

3,226 3,226 (25) (25) - - - -  

Schools Delegated 
Capital 

23,697 23,697 2,782 2,782 - - - -  

Conquest Centre 356 356 311 243 68 - 68 - vii 

Total CSD Gross 28,336 28,282 3,135 3,013 122 0 122 0  

 

Page 49



APPENDIX 5 

Communities, Economy & Transport – end of year 2019/20 

Summary of progress on Council Priorities, issues arising, and achievements 

2019/20 Summary of successes and achievements – Improvement works to Terminus Road in Eastbourne, to 
modernise the town centre, improve the pedestrian environment, and complement the redevelopment of The Beacon 
shopping centre, were completed in January 2020. Outstanding snagging and defects will be completed once the 
contractor returns to work following lock-down. Construction of the Newhaven Port Access Road has continued on 
schedule, with completion projected for autumn 2020. The South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) assigned 
almost £2.5m from the Local Growth Fund Round 3 to East Sussex projects in Q1, including almost £1m to create 
new jobs and workspaces in Bexhill; and £1.5m for the replacement of the Exceat Bridge, to improve connectivity and 
support housing growth. Funding was secured to improve transport in the county in Q1, including £200k from the 
Department for Transport’s Cycle Rail fund for work with Southern Rail, and £870k from the Passenger Rail benefit 
fund to improve 29 stations across East Sussex. The South East Creative, Cultural and Digital support programme 
has awarded grants to 15 small and medium-sized enterprises in East Sussex in 2019/20, and 15 businesses have 
benefitted from 12 hours of support. Businesses were also supported to create 141 jobs through business support 
programmes; and Locate East Sussex assisted 36 businesses to move into, or relocate within, the county. 86 online 
courses were completed in our libraries in 2019/20, on topics such as English, maths and ICT. 

Queensway Gateway Road – The second phase of the road has now been finished, however there have continued 
to be delays in completing the road, due to ongoing land and business relocation issues. Plans for a temporary 
solution have been developed and work on this continues; alongside this Highways England and the Council are 
continuing to work on a permanent solution. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic there will be delays in the Traffic 
Regulation Orders and in the supply chain for construction, which has resulted in an estimated further two to six-
month delay in the project (ref i). These delays have led to a slippage of £500k (ref viii). 

Road condition – The road condition statistics (where a lower outturn indicates a better performance) for 2019/20 
have been published: the percentage of Principal roads requiring maintenance remained the same as in 2018/19, 5%, 
exceeding the target; the percentage of Non Principal roads requiring maintenance decreased from 7% in 2018/19 to 
5% in 2019/20, again exceeding the target. The percentage of Unclassified roads requiring maintenance increased to 
14%, but this was still within target. 154 carriageway asset improvement schemes were completed in 2019/20, to 
maintain and improve the condition of the county’s roads. The 2020/21 programme has been published on the East 
Sussex Highways Website. 

Employability and Skills – The Council was the only local authority to be awarded funding to improve careers 
education in primary schools, with the £145k being used to provide a primary careers pilot. 34 Industry Champions 
took part in the Open Doors event between October and December 2019, offering work-place visits to over 1,000 
students. Six sector tasks groups, plus the Apprenticeships East Sussex group are working to action plans that meet 
the Skills East Sussex priorities; with updates provided by the task group chairs to the Skills East Sussex board in 
February 2020. The Careers Hub has supported schools to achieve an average of 4.4 national Gatsby benchmarks. 
125 Industry Champions have continued to support schools and colleges in 2019/20, an increase of 21 from the final 
figure in 2018/19. 

Road Safety – Trials of the behavioural change initiatives launched as part of the Council’s £1m Road Safety 
Scheme have continued in Q4. Analysis of the impact of the Anniversary trial, which was carried out earlier in the 
year, has continued, with full outcomes expected in 2020/21. Initial data from the young driver’s project indicates that 
over 24% of young drivers and their passengers reported positive attitudinal and behavioural changes in response to 
the engagement campaign. There was a positive change in both passenger responsibility and behaviour, which is key 
to safe driving amongst young people. Three road safety schemes have been completed in 2019/20, with a further 
two under construction, and three more waiting to be scheduled into the contractors work programme (ref iv). 

Broadband – 1,197 premises now have access to improved broadband speeds, against a target of 1,267, so 
although we haven’t achieved the target for the year, 95% of the required premises are connected, with a shortfall of 
only 70 premises. The short fall was due to Openreach delivering reduced volumes at their own risk (ie at risk of not 
getting paid for the work) whilst agreeing contractual changes. Contractual changes have now been agreed and 
delivery volumes are back on track (ref ii). Overall take-up amongst properties who have been connected is 68%. The 
delays in the project have led to a slippage of £800k (ref vi). 

Cultural Tourism – The T Stats monitoring tool has been trialled in Eastbourne but is not being taken forward by 
Lewes or Wealden. England’s Creative Coast, which was due to be launched in June 2020, has been delayed due to 
Covid-19; and work on the Tourism Zone has also been put on hold due to the pandemic. The Council is supporting 
cultural institutions to access Covid-19 mitigation grants and holding weekly groups to provide assistance (ref iii). 

Page 50



APPENDIX 5 

Trading Standards – Trading Standards provided 19 training workshops to businesses in 2019/20, with 346 
delegates attending. There were also 127 positive interventions to protect vulnerable people, including visiting 107 
victims of rogue trading or financial abuse and installing 20 call blockers to protect people from telephone scams. 

Waste – A new three-year waste disposal contract, which saw all five East Sussex district and borough councils pass 
their dry mixed recycling to the Council, was awarded to Viridor and began on 29 June 2019. Part of the new contract 
focused on selling the recycling back into the marketplace to produce new materials, which will both generate income, 
75% of which will be retained by the Council, and reduce the county’s environmental impact. Viridor also agreed to 
several additional benefits including a gain share from operational efficiencies as the contract develops, a community 
fund, and access to online resources for communities which should boost recycling rates. 

Revenue Budget Summary – The revenue budget has a provisional underspend of £473k. The most significant 
variances are in Transport where the late introduction of parking charge increases has resulted in the £1m income 
target not being achieved this year (ref v). The income shortfall will be offset by the £1.840m underspend in Waste. Of 
this £536k relates to one-off costs. The rest is mostly due to reduced household waste volumes. Concessionary Fares 
have reduced costs by renegotiating bus provider contracts but have overspent as the £1m contribution from parking 
income is not available this year. Payments to bus operators are lower than expected due to renegotiated contracts 
following one operator going into administration. We have also been able to manage income and expenditure in a 
number of areas, resulting in an overall departmental underspend. Taking a One Council approach, we have been 
able to support activities and expenditure in a number of services that would normally have been funded through 
reserve drawdowns. This means that the Council’s reserves have not be expended to the level previously scheduled 
and this makes funding available for future years. The occurrence of underspends that will support the expected 
reserves income are not aligned with the services that were to receive this funding, therefore some service areas may 
appear to be in an overspend position. 

Capital Programme Summary – The CET capital programme had a gross budget of £58.687m and had slippage of 
£6.843m, spend in advance of £558k and an underspend of £120k. The Bexhill to Hastings Link Road scheme has 
slipped due to the delay in processing part 1 compensation claims (ref vii). Wet weather has delayed construction in 
the Skills for Rural Business scheme (ref ix), and planning issues have delayed the Sidney Little Road Incubator Hub 
(ref x). Strong winds from Storm Ciara and Storm Dennis delayed the Newhaven Port Access Road planned bridge 
beam lift (ref xi). The installation of parking ticket machines is delayed pending DFT approval on the new Rother 
Parking Scheme (ref xii). There are a number of complexities on all routes within the Hastings and Bexhill Movement 
and Access Package, mainly redesign work following consultations and safety audits which have delayed construction 
(ref xiii). The slippage on the Eastbourne and South Wealden Walking and Cycling package is due to confirmation 
from Eastbourne Borough Council on the value of the work that could be undertaken in year (ref xiv). There have 
been some compensation events and additional costs in the Terminus Road project and the overspend will be met 
from the Integrated Transport programme (ref xv). 

 

Performance exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure Outturn 18/19 Target 19/20 
19/20 RAG 

2019/20 outturn 
Note 
Ref Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Priority – Driving sustainable economic growth 

Work with Seachange 
Sussex to deliver major 
transport infrastructure – 
Queensway Gateway Road 

First phase 
completed in Q3 

Complete second 
phase of the road 

G A A G 

Designs for the 
Temporary Road 
Solution (TRS) 
developed: works 
progressing for 
contractors to return to 
site 

i 

Number of additional 
premises with improved 
broadband speeds 

9,511 premises 1,267 premises G G G R 1,197 premises ii 

Deliver Culture East Sussex 
agreed actions to grow 
Cultural Tourism 

Recommendations 
delivered 

Trial the T Stats 
(Tourism 
Statistics) 

monitoring tool 
with tourism 

businesses in the 
Lewes, 

Eastbourne and 
Wealden area 

G G A R 

T.stats now being 
trialled by Eastbourne; 
but not taken forward 
by Lewes or Wealden 
for now 

iii 

Page 51



APPENDIX 5 

Performance exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure Outturn 18/19 Target 19/20 
19/20 RAG 

2019/20 outturn 
Note 
Ref Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Priority – Making best use of resources 

Road Safety: Implement 
infrastructure schemes on 
identified high risk routes to 
improve road safety 

5 schemes 
10 schemes 
(subject to 
funding) 

A A A R 3 schemes completed iv 

 

Savings exceptions 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Note 
ref 

Original 
Target For 

2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

Civil Parking Enforcement 1,000 1,000 - 1,000 - v 

Highways Maintenance 889 889 889 - -  

Household Waste Disposal 200 200 200 - -  

Waste - 162 162 - -  

Concessionary Travel 150 150 150 - -  

Library and Information Services - 125 125 - -  

Archives and Records 32 32 32 - -  

Road Safety Services 32 32 32 - -  

Ashdown Forest 31 31 31 - -  

Environmental Advice Services 15 15 15 - -  

Total Savings 2,349 2,636 1,636 1,000 0  

   - - -  

   - - -  

   - - -  

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0  

Total Savings and Permanent Changes 2,349 2,636 1,636 1,000 0  

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Total Note Ref  

Civil parking Enforcement use of underspend 
in Waste 

1,000 - 1,000   

Total 1,000 0 1,000   

 

Revenue budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Management and Support 3,695 (2,428) 1,267 6,187 (4,660) 1,527 (2,492) 2,232 (260)  

Customer and Library Services 7,272 (2,240) 5,032 7,400 (2,324) 5,076 (128) 84 (44)  

Communities 4,236 (2,717) 1,519 4,370 (2,923) 1,447 (134) 206 72  

Transport & Operational 
Services 

80,499 (43,624) 36,875 77,689 (41,738) 35,951 2,810 (1,886) 924  

Highways 15,023 (2,382) 12,641 15,080 (2,426) 12,654 (57) 44 (13)  

Economy 3,648 (2,500) 1,148 3,595 (2,393) 1,202 53 (107) (54)  

Planning and Environment 2,847 (2,027) 820 2,989 (2,017) 972 (142) (10) (152)  

TOTAL CET 117,220 (57,918) 59,302 117,310 (58,481) 58,829 (90) 563 473  

 

Page 52



APPENDIX 5 

Capital programme 

Approved project 

Total project – all 
years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 

Note 
ref 

End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 

budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

Registration Ceremonies 
Website 

30 30 7 7 - - - -  

Libraries 5,140 5,140 539 446 93 - 93 -  

Hastings Library 8,738 8,609 130 1 129 129 - -  

Southover Grange - 9 - 9 (9) (9) - -  

Broadband 33,800 33,800 1,304 509 795 - 795 - vi 

Bexhill and Hastings Link 
Road 

126,247 126,247 1,497 629 868 - 868 - vii 

BHLR Complementary 
Measures 

1,800 1,800 133 152 (19) - - (19)  

Economic Intervention Fund 9,533 9,533 857 673 184 - 184 -  

Stalled Sites Fund 916 916 230 224 6 - 6 -  

EDS Upgrading Empty 
Commercial Properties 

500 500 117 170 (53) - - (53)  

Queensway Gateway Road 10,000 10,000 1,570 1,066 504 - 504 - viii 

East Sussex Strategic Growth 
Package 

8,200 8,200 350 350 - - - -  

Bexhill Enterprise Park North 1,940 1,940 - - - - - -  

Skills for Rural Businesses - 
Post Brexit 

2,918 2,918 2,134 229 1,905 - 1,905 - ix 

Sidney Little Road Business 
Incubator Hub 

500 500 381 65 316 - 316 - x 

Bexhill Creative Workspace 960 960 - 14 (14) - - (14)  

Newhaven Port Access Road 23,271 23,271 13,143 12,604 539 - 539 - xi 

Real Time Passenger 
Information 

2,798 2,798 127 32 95 - 95 -  

Parking Ticket Machine 
Renewal 

1,479 1,479 559 268 291 - 291 - xii 

Hastings and Bexhill 
Movement & Access Package 

9,057 9,057 1,747 1,438 309 - 309 - xiii 

Eastbourne/South Wealden 
Walking & Cycling Package 

7,017 7,017 814 451 363 - 363 - xiv 

Hailsham/Polegate/Eastbourne 
Movement & Access Corridor 

2,350 2,350 679 473 206 - 206 -  

Terminus Road Improvements 9,000 9,182 2,995 3,427 (432) (182) - (250) xv 

Eastbourne Town Centre 
Movement & Access Package 

3,486 3,486 148 244 (96) - - (96)  

Other Integrated Transport 
Schemes 

34,818 34,636 1,453 1,088 365 182 183 -  

Community Match Fund 1,500 1,500 119 52 67 - 67 -  

Exceat Bridge 4,133 4,133 660 665 (5) - - (5)  

Queensway Depot 
Development 

1,956 1,956 500 485 15 - 15 -  

Hailsham HWRS 97 97 73 - 73 - 73 -  

Core Programme - Highways 
Structural Maintenance 

236,348 236,348 23,624 23,696 (72) - - (72)  

Core Programme - Bridge 
Assessment Strengthening 

13,310 13,310 1,266 1,299 (33) - - (33)  

Core Programme - Street 
Lighting - Life Expired 
Equipment 

10,133 10,133 1,115 1,131 (16) - - (16)  

Page 53



APPENDIX 5 

Capital programme 

Approved project 

Total project – all 
years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 

Note 
ref 

End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 

budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

Core Programme - Rights of 
Way Programme 

4,883 4,883 416 385 31 - 31 -  

Total CET 576,858 576,738 58,687 52,282 6,405 120 6,843 (558)  
 

Page 54



APPENDIX 6 

Governance – end of year 2019/20 

Summary of progress on Council Priorities, issues arising, and achievements 

Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) – RPPR, which has been effective in matching our 
resources to our priorities and in providing evidence for lobbying, will be used to manage our planning as the Council 
moves towards resetting its services to manage in a world where COVID-19 remains with us and social distancing 
becomes the norm. 

Transport for the South East (TfSE) – The Shadow Partnership Board met on 23 April and approved the final draft 
Transport Strategy, which shows that with the right investment in the region’s transport network the South East’s 
economy will more than double over the next thirty years, creating an additional 500,000 jobs, boosting quality of life 
and access to opportunities and helping cut the South East’s carbon emissions to net-zero. The public consultation on 
the draft Strategy, which was launched at a conference in October featuring a keynote speech from George Freeman, 
Minister of State at the Department for Transport, ran from 7 October 2019 to 10 January 2020 and resulted in more 
than 3,600 responses. Analysis of the responses demonstrated very high levels of support for key aspects of the draft 
Transport Strategy. 84% of those responding to the questionnaire agreed with the 2050 Vision and almost 9 out of 10 
agreed that the draft Transport Strategy makes a strong case for continued investment in the South East’s transport 
system. In total 78% of these respondents agreed with the ‘decide and provide’ approach adopted in the strategy and 
63% agreed that, overall, the draft Transport Strategy would enable TfSE to achieve its mission. There have been a 
number of drafting changes to the final draft Transport Strategy, including the focus on environmental issues, greater 
consideration to rural areas and strengthening the sections on the relationship with London.  

Constituent authorities will have the opportunity to take the final draft Strategy through their own democratic 
processes for sign off prior to the Shadow Partnership Board agreeing the final Transport Strategy for publication in 
July 2020.  

A decision is awaited from the Department for Transport (DfT) on the grant funding for 2020/21 and the team are 
continuing to work with DfT and other Sub-national Transport Bodies (STB) to influence decisions around STB funding 
in the forthcoming spending round. The Chair of TfSE has written to Baroness Vere requesting a meeting to discuss 
these issues and TfSE’s ambition to become a statutory body. A positive response has been received and it is hoped 
that the meeting can be scheduled once the COVID-19 restrictions are lifted.  

Corporate Lobbying – We have continued lobbying for fair and sustainable funding for the Council in 2019/20, 
working with ministers, senior civil servants and local MPs. The one-year Spending Round in September 2019 
confirmed the continuation of one-off grants allocated in the last financial year, additional funding for social care and 
Special Educational Needs and Disability provision and an additional ASC Council Tax precept. These provisions 
were very welcome, but we have continued to make the case for a more sustainable funding model where resources 
match local need. 

East Sussex MPs were briefed by the Leader and Chief Executive of the Council on our spending and savings plans 
for 2020/21 throughout the budget setting process in Q4, emphasising how important additional Government funding 
had been in balancing the budget and the need for continued joint working to make the case for longer-term certainty 
and fair funding. The Leader and Chief Executive also met with MPs in February to discuss funding and local issues. 
As the Council stepped up its response to the COVID-19 pandemic in March, MPs and strategic partners received 
daily briefings on the Council’s work and we worked closely with them to use all channels available to escalate local 
issues into Government. 

Supporting democracy – During 2019/20 we supported 137 meetings (33 in Q4) including: five County Council 
meetings (one in Q4); nine Cabinet meetings (two in Q4); 44 Lead Member meetings (12 in Q4); 34 Scrutiny 
Committees and Review Boards (nine in Q4); and 47 other committees and panels (11 in Q4). We also published 
agendas for a further 59 meetings (17 in Q4). The number of unique page views on the Members’ Intranet site during 
the year was 2,705 (595 in Q4). 

The Council’s Scrutiny Committees completed four Scrutiny Reviews during 2019/20, supported by updated guidance 
and training for Members on the Scrutiny Review process. Each review made a series of recommendations designed 
to address challenges and improve processes for the benefit of residents and Council services. Progress against the 
action plans agreed in response to reviews was monitored six and twelve months on to ensure appropriate 
implementation. Scrutiny Committees were supported to undertake a range of other work, all of which is designed to 
provide constructive challenge and input on service delivery and policy development. This included submitting 
comments to Cabinet in Q4 to inform the budget-setting process for 2020/21, in particular making recommendations 
with regard to the use of one-off funding. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee continued to provide critical 
friend challenge to local NHS organisations on behalf of local people, including reviewing and commenting on NHS 
proposals for service change. 

With oversight from the Member ICT and Development Reference Group, a training programme was delivered in 
response to areas of need identified by Members through an annual survey. Training sessions during 2019/20 were 

Page 55



APPENDIX 6 

delivered on emergency planning, scrutiny, equality and diversity, IT and media/social media. Activity in Q4 focused 
on the development of a Member wellbeing support offer which will be taken forward in 2020/21. Additional support for 
Members was put in place on remote working and virtual meetings towards the end of Q4, to support the continuation 
of core business during the COVID-19 restrictions. 

Following secondary school place offer day on 2 March the main round of school appeals began. The East Sussex 
School Appeals Service has been active in supporting parents who wish to submit an appeal. The impact of COVID-
19 towards the end of Q4 will result in planned appeals hearings being rearranged in line with temporary alternative 
arrangements being put in place nationally. Hearings for the main round are expected to take place during Q1 and Q2 
2020/21 ahead of the start of the new school year in September. In total 522 school admission appeals were received 
during 2019/20 (203 during Q4). Two exclusion reviews were also received and arranged, both in Q4. During 2019/20 
the service has successfully recruited and trained four new clerks and a group of new panel members to assist with 
school appeals. This will help us ensure we are able to manage increased demand during the main round of appeals. 
The majority of appeals continue to be submitted using the secure online digital appeal management system. Work 
was undertaken in Q4, in conjunction with IT & Digital, to incorporate additional features which will improve 
administrative efficiency and the customer experience. 

Legal Services – During Q4 we assisted Trading Standards in a successful prosecution for breach of consumer 
protection regulations, which resulted in a 12 month community order and a costs order for £14,000. We also 
successfully defended an appeal by a firm against a financial penalty of £5,000 which had been imposed for 
Consumer Rights Act breaches. We also secured repayment plans for debts totalling £320,000. 

In Q4 we conducted two contested education trials and one Education Supervision Order application. During 2019/20 
we carried out 337 prosecutions for failure to send a child to school (61 in Q4); as well as 122 contentious vulnerable 
adult cases (up from 69 in 2018/19); and 215 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguarding applications in the Court of 
Protection (up from 174 in 2018/19). As an immediate consequence of the COVID-19 outbreak, we have also 
provided advice and support on finalising non urgent interventions so that Adult Social Care and Health (ASCH) staff 
could be mobilised differently and we advised on the production of guidance and policy documents required as a 
consequence of the Coronavirus Act 2020, related statutory guidance and associated secondary legislation.  

In 2019/20, we also continued to advise and assist Children’s Services in pre-proceedings and court applications for 
care proceedings, as well as providing advice and assistance in relation to a wide range of other children’s matters, 
such as private law applications, secure accommodation, deprivation of liberty, wardship and judicial review. We 
continued to work closely with Children’s Services to analyse risks and options, including the use of pre-proceedings 
with the aim of producing the best outcome for the child. In Q4 we have 57 families involved in pre-proceedings 
work. In 2019/20, we have applied for care proceedings in respect of 80 families, which is a decrease from the 95 
cases issued in 2018/19. At the end of Q4 we had a total of 60 ongoing care proceedings (up from 51 in Q3) 
concerning 99 children. Of the 76 care proceedings which concluded in 2019/20, approximately half of those cases 
concluded with children living with family. In light of the COVID-19 restrictions, we have also worked in close liaison 
with the local courts and the designated family judge through regular meetings to ensure where possible that cases 
can continue to progress via remote court hearings. We are also working in close liaison with Children’s Services to 
prioritise safeguarding those children most at risk until services can return to normal. 

In Q4 we completed agreements which helped to secure financial contributions to the Council of £230,915 and we 
finalised agreements relating to works to improve or create highways and to secure highway rights. We also finalised 
the complex land registration of Camber Sands at the HM Land Registry, which was required prior to changes due to 
take place pursuant to the Countryside Sites Review. In addition, as well as dealing with ongoing matters, we also 
advised on 37 new contract and procurement matters and 21 new property transactions. 

Coroner Services – On average 206 deaths per month were reported to the Coroner in Q4. This is slightly higher 
than the Q3 figure of 199 and higher than the 2019/20 average of 178. During 2019/20 a total of 2,130 deaths were 
reported to the Coroner, which is slightly less than the total of 2,279 deaths reported in 2018/19. 

In Q4, 99 inquests were opened, whereas 70 were opened in Q3. A total of 283 inquests were opened in 2019/20, 
slightly less than the 308 inquests opened in 2018/19. 79 inquests were closed in Q4, exactly the same as closed in 
Q3. A total of 260 inquests were closed in 2019/20 in comparison to 309 closed in 2018/19. The availability of 
pathologists continues to be the main risk, but the Council continues to work closely with mortuary managers and the 
Senior Coroner to manage this. COVID-19 has not impacted significantly on deaths reported to the Coroner in 
2019/20. Where COVID-19 is capable of being a natural cause of death, it is not a reason on its own to refer a death 
to a Coroner. 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) – There have been no authorisations granted in relation to RIPA 
during Q4. A Trading Standards generated Directed Surveillance application is pending, which is seeking authority to 
test purchase items from Facebook Marketplace sites. This follows advice and guidance from the Investigatory 
Powers Commissioner’s Office. On a similar theme, the Guidance for accessing Facebook or social media across 
Children’s Services policy has been prepared and is available on the Council’s Intranet. 

Page 56



APPENDIX 6 

Local Government Ombudsman complaints – 19 decisions were issued in Q4 with eight of these cases relating to 
Adult Social Care (ASC), two to Communities, Economy & Transport (CET) and nine to Children’s Services (CS). Ten 
were closed before a full Ombudsman investigation for reasons including, insufficient evidence of fault, complaints 
being out of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction and the complaint not having been through our internal complaints 
processes. Of the nine fully investigated, six were closed with no fault found and three were closed with the complaint 
partly or fully upheld. 

CS –The Ombudsman found fault with the Council for not following its policy for managing unreasonable customer 
behaviour when, in order to protect staff, a named senior officer was designated as a single point of contact. The 
Council has agreed to lift the restriction on the complainant’s contact, pay him £100 for distress and uncertainty, 
remind staff to follow the Council’s policy on managing unreasonable customer behaviour and take steps to ensure 
the Council has records or other evidence to support any decision to restrict contact under the policy. 

CS – The Ombudsman found no evidence of bias or discrimination in a child protection investigation and found that 
the Council carried out the investigation properly. The Council however made a mistake in the way it referred to the 
child’s allegation. The Council has agreed to apologise and correct the error. 

CS – The Ombudsman found some delays in the issuing of an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) which 
impacted on transition planning for a move to secondary school but considered that there was insufficient evidence to 
say that had a negative impact on the complainant’s son starting secondary school. The Ombudsman found the 
Council’s failure to undertake an educational psychology assessment in a timely way as part of this process, caused 
distress to the family. The Council has agreed that it will pay the complainant £150 to recognise the uncertainty and 
distress caused and remind those staff involved in conducting educational psychology assessments of the importance 
of completing them in a timely way. 

Effective publicity and campaigns – We publicised the establishment of East Sussex community hubs to help 
vulnerable and isolated residents with COVID-19 during Q4. This included writing, designing, printing and distributing 
clear public information leaflets both online and in paper copies for use by all local authorities and volunteer groups. 
These were publicised online and, in the media, translated into multiple languages and delivered to many homes 
directly, targeting those households most likely to be at risk. We have kept residents, partners, members and staff 
updated with regular email newsletters and briefings (daily in some cases) which have included pointing people to 
useful services, support and information. 

There were rapid marketing campaigns to help recruit extra care workers in response to the pandemic. In their first 
wave, 25 people have contacted the Council online to express interest in adult social care jobs, while there were 
almost 100 completed applications for roles in children’s services, including 29 from social workers or other highly 
qualified staff. These campaigns used a mix of targeted social media advertising, web content, digital newsletters and 
traditional media. They are in addition to longer-term, continuing recruitment campaigns for teachers, care workers, 
social workers and other key staff.  

Media work – There were 456 media stories about the council in Q4, of which 158 were positive and 196 were 
neutral (stories are classified as positive if they generally celebrate an aspect of the council’s work and neutral if they 
balance any criticism with positive comment from the council or others). The press office issued 48 press releases, 
generating 141 stories, of which 11 were on TV or radio. 217 media enquiries were handled. 

In 2019/20 there were 1,766 media stories, of which 564 were positive and 704 were neutral. The press office issued 
145 press releases, generating 514 stories of which 62 were on TV or radio. 695 media enquiries were handled. 

Web activity – Web pages offering public information and support with COVID-19 were published on the council 
website as the disease arrived in the UK. There have been 47,000 views of these pages to date. 

In Q4 the entire council website was accessed almost 800,000 times, with more than 3.3 million page-views. For the 
year, these figures were just under 3 million and 13 million respectively. 

Traffic to the Your East Sussex website (which helped replace the Council’s printed magazine) more than doubled in 
2019/20, with over 140,000 page-views. 

Social Media – Engagement with the Council’s social media channels (the measure of responses, likes and shares 
for social media posts) rose by 4.7% in 2019/20 when compared to 2018/19. 

Third Sector support – During Q4 we ran the second Crowdfund East Sussex Projects That Matter (PTM) campaign, 
a competition seeking entries from Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) organisations with a 
Crowdfunding idea. There were over 30 entries, with five being selected to receive training support from Crowdfunder. 
As we were preparing to announce the winners COVID-19 became a major concern, and we have put a hold on 
announcing and providing the support to winners to work up their project ideas. The go live date for the PTM winners 
to appear on Crowdfund East Sussex has been moved to August 2020 and Crowdfunder have been in contact with 
the winners. 

The fourth round of How to Crowdfund training sessions planned for May 2020 was also put on hold due to COVID-19 
these sessions will be rescheduled for Q2 2020/21. 

Page 57



APPENDIX 6 

The Social Value Market Place (SVMP) activity was paused as a result of COVID-19. Business Services considered 
adapting SVMP in response to COVID-19, but instead have set up My Business for offers of help from businesses. 

Partnership Plus discussions were paused, however the Valuing the Sector research moved on with the Institute for 
Voluntary Action Research (IVAR). Because of COVID-19 the timescale for this research has been brought forward. 
IVAR has submitted their response to the brief, and we are looking to commence the work at the end of Q1 2020/21. 

The generic infrastructure service providers (3VA, HVA, and RVA) continued to deliver services, however in response 
to COVID-19 their work has been focused on working alongside the Districts and Boroughs to establish and operate 
the Community Hubs. The voluntary action groups have worked to develop and advise the local VCSE sector 
response to helping fill any Shielded Group gaps, provide support to vulnerable children and adults, and those who 
are self-isolating. 

The voluntary action groups work on the NHS funded Integrating Volunteering Programme (IVP) continues, however 
because of COVID-19 all activity is paused and is being refocused on sharing insight and learning with partners 
across the England wide network. Partners across the Sussex Integrated Care Systems programme have submitted a 
bid for Phase 2 of IVP, and the NHE decision is expected in May. 

The VCSE Alliance has been working to formalise their governance structure and are submitting a Kings Fund bid 
along with the Council and the Community Care Group, the bid is in response to the Healthy Communities Together 
fund. The bid is in its final drafting and will be submitted in Q1 2020/21. 

East Sussex Community Voice (ESCV), our Healthwatch East Sussex provider, has refocused their work towards 
responding to the pressures of COVID-19 on people, service users and carers. ESCV are playing a key role in the 
VCSE Alliance, with John Routledge taking on the role of Chair.  

Third Sector support has been working alongside ASCH in establishing the Community Hubs, working to ensure that 
the VCSE sector in East Sussex are supported in their local communities, Community Hubs, and at the LRF level. 
This has included working with ASCH to develop three COVID-19 grant funds for the VCSE sector. 

South East 7 (SE7) – The SE7 Leaders Board met in January and received a presentation from Kent County Council 
and WSP consultants on actions councils could take to respond to the climate emergency and meet net-zero targets. 
The Board agreed SE7 should facilitate sharing of information, expertise, approaches and net-zero strategies as they 
were developed and that through TfSE the region should pursue the strategic infrastructure and investment to deliver 
transport decarbonisation at scale. The Board also considered the new Government’s policy agenda, including 
expectations for devolution and local growth policy and agreed SE7 should develop a regional proposal to maintain 
economic prosperity. This work has been paused due to the COVID-19 pandemic and will be re-examined in the new 
economic context. SE7 Leaders and Chief Executives have maintained regular contact throughout the COVID-19 
response and the partnership has been integral to coordination of approach and sharing of information and learning. 

Partnership with West Sussex County Council – Cabinet agreed in December 2019 to enter into an improvement 
partnership with West Sussex County Council (WSCC), during Q4 the partnership has continued to explore the ways 
the two organisations could work together and the potential joint benefits this could bring. We have also been working 
in partnership in response to, and planning for the recovery from, the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) – Work on the joint plan with health has been suspended until after the COVID-
19 pandemic is over. 

Revenue budget summary – The net revenue budget was £7.366m and was underspent by £31k. There were over 
and underspends across all services. 

 

Page 58



APPENDIX 6 

Performance exceptions 
(See How to read this report for definition) 

Performance measure Outturn 18/19 Target 19/20 
19/20 RAG 

2019/20 outturn 
Note 
ref Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

There are no Council Plan targets         

 

Savings exceptions 

Service description 

2019/20 (£'000) 

Note 
ref 

Original 
Target For 

2019/20 

Target 
including 
items c/f 

from 
previous 
year(s) 

Achieved 
in-year 

Will be 
achieved, 

but in 
future 
years 

Cannot be 
achieved 

Savings 

There are no targeted savings in 2019/20 - - - - -  

 - - - - -  

Total Savings 0 0 0 0 0  

   - - -  

   - - -  

Subtotal Permanent Changes   0 0 0  

Total Savings and Permanent Changes 0 0 0 0 0  

 

Memo: treatment of savings not achieved 
in the year (£'000) 

Temporary 
Funding 

Part of 
reported 
variance 

Total Note Ref  

 - - -   

Total 0 0 0   

 

Revenue budget 

Divisions 
Planned (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) 
Note 
ref 

End of year outturn (Over) / under spend 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 

Corporate Governance 4,900  (534)  4,366  4,858  (557)  4,301  42  23  65   

Corporate Support 3,289  (289) 3,000  3,446  (412)  3,034  (157)  123  (34)   

Total Governance 8,189  (823)  7,366  8,304  (969)  7,335  (115)  146  31   

 

Capital programme 

Approved project 
Total project – all 

years (£000) 

2019/20 (£000) Note 
ref End of year outturn Analysis of variation 

 Budget Projected Budget Actual 

Variation 
(over) / 
under 
budget 

(Over) / 
under 
spend 

Slippage 
to future 

year 

Spend in 
advance 

 

No current programme 
for Governance 

- - - - - - - -  

Total Governance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

 

Page 59



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

New 

COVID-19 

Adverse impact of Covid-19 sickness, restrictions 
and national response measures on Council 
finances and services. Severely reduced ability to 
deliver services, priorities and long-term planning, 
impacting on e.g. protecting and supporting 
vulnerable adults and children, education and 
schools, roads and infrastructure, local economic 
growth, and the Council's workforce. 

New services to protect and support the most medically vulnerable have been introduced, existing 
services have changed and adapted to the changing situation. We are endeavouring to keep services 
going as far as possible and to offer other options when it isn’t possible. Looking after the most 
vulnerable people in our community is our absolute priority. We have begun a scheme where staff can 
volunteer their skills and experience to help maintain our essential services across the council during 
this critical time. We have received additional funding from the Government and are monitoring our 
Covid 19 spend. We are also monitoring impacts on the economy and wider community. 

The Corporate Management Team are meeting regularly to ensure our response is effectively co-
ordinated and working well through our established partnerships and the new partnerships which come 
into operation when we are operating under the Civil Contingencies Act including the Sussex Resilience 
Forum and the Local Health Resilience Forum.  

Extensive co-ordination and lobbying are taking place at Members and officer level through SE7, CCN 
and other arrangements. 

R 

P
age 60



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

12 

CYBER ATTACK 

The National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) has 
highlighted the substantial risk to British web 
infrastructure with elevated levels of Cyber Crime 
being reported against all areas of government.  

Cyber-attacks often include multi vector attacks 
featuring internet based, social engineering and 
targeted exploits against hardware, software and 
personnel. The remote nature of the internet makes 
this an international issue and an inevitable risk. 

Examples of the impact of a Cyber Attack include: 

• Financial fraud related to phishing of executives 
and finance staff; 

• Loss of Personally Identifiable Information and 
subsequent fines from Information Commissioner's 
Office (4% of global revenue under the new General 
Data Protection Regulations); 

• Total loss of access to systems that could lead to 
threat to life. 

A successful cyber-attack can shut down operations 
- not just for a few hours, but rather for multiple days 
and weeks. The collateral damage, such as 
information leaks and reputational damage can 
continue for much longer.  Added to that, backup 
systems, applications and data may also be infected 
and therefore, of little usable value during response 
and recovery operations - they may need to be 
cleansed before they can be used for recovery.  This 
takes time and consumes skilled resources reducing 
capacity available to operate the usual services that 
keep the Council working. 

Most attacks leverage software flaws and gaps in boundary defences.  Keeping software up to date with 
regular patching regimes; continually monitoring evolving threats and re-evaluating the ability of our 
toolset to provide adequate defence'.  Ongoing discussion and communication with the Info Sec 
industry to find the most suitable tools and systems to secure our infrastructure. 

Expanding Security Information and Event Management (SIEM) system capabilities to align with SCC 
and leverage latest standards of automation, detection and prevention. 

Development of “Security Advocates”. Trained staff that can cascade and share cyber security insights 
and highlight potential issues into the workforce.  Promoting a visible approachable business-based 
security team; 

Enhancing user awareness - Expanding E-Learning and policy delivery mechanisms to cover Cyber 
threat, educating staff around the techniques and methods used by active threats. With 77% of all 
malware installed via email, users to be given learning experiences of phishing at point of use in a safe 
and secure environment; 

Providing GDPR training and workshops to cascade vital skills and information to those affected by new 
Data Protection laws; 

ESCC servers moved to the Orbis Primary Data Centre for resilience – An accredited Tier 3 
environment certified to these standards: 

• ISO 27001 - IT Governance and Information Security Management 

• ISO 9001 - Quality Standard in Customer Service, Customer Processes, Product Process and 
Service, Efficiency and Continuous Improvement 

• ISO 14001 - Environmental Management and Best Practices for Corporate Environmental 
Responsibility. 

Disaster Recovery services are now similarly relocated in a Tier 3 Data Centre environment (Orbis 
Secondary Data Centre in Guildford). 

R 

P
age 61



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

4 

HEALTH 

Failure to secure maximum value from partnership 
working with the NHS. If not achieved, there will be 
impact on social care, public health and health 
outcomes and increased social care cost pressures. 
This would add pressures on the Council's budget 
and/or risks to other Council objectives. 

Between January and March progress has continued to ensure the system is on track with the agreed 
East Sussex Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) arrangements to be in place from 1st April, including: 

•Plans to build on BCF risk sharing arrangements to support decisions to include wider services at a 
later point in 2020/21 

•Progress with integrated commissioning 

•The target operating model for community health and social care services 

•Objective setting for the 2020/21 delivery programme 

As a result of the onset of the COVID-19 emergency in order to enable strengthened levels of system 
capacity and grip on our COVID-19 (C19) urgent planning and response, on 23rd March the East 
Sussex Health and Social Care Executive Group formally agreed to suspend all of the non-critical 
elements of our system business for the duration of the crisis.  This included standing down the key 
elements of system governance meetings and putting in place appropriate alternative temporary 
governance and meeting arrangements, to enable to enable a stepped-up grip on C19 strategic and 
operational planning across our East Sussex system.  The critical initial focus has been on urgently 
securing additional capacity and managing patient and financial flow in line with the national 
requirements to discharge all DTOCs and those medically fit for discharge for hospital in order to plan 
for the surge in expected COVID related admissions.  The temporary arrangements are designed to 
ensure a coordinated C19 response across our system, to meet the needs of our population, and 
enable rapid progress to be made, risks and significant impacts for social care to be managed.  This will 
be kept under review as the C19 emergency progresses. 

R 

5 

RECONCILING POLICY, PERFORMANCE & 
RESOURCE 

Failure to plan and implement a strategic corporate 
response to resource reductions, demographic 
change, and regional economic challenges in order 
to ensure continued delivery of services to the local 
community. 

We employ a robust Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) process for business 
planning. We have adopted a commissioning approach which means evaluating need and considering 
all methods of service delivery, which includes working with partner organisations to deliver services 
and manage demand. The Council Plan sets out targets for a 'One Council' approach to deliver our 
priorities and is monitored quarterly. The plans take account of known risks and pressures, including 
demographic changes and financial risks, to design mechanisms to deliver the Council’s priorities. We 
will continue to lobby for the need for long term, predictable and sustainable funding for local 
government and East Sussex, which reflects our residents’ real and growing need through the fair 
funding review later this year. We will also continue to make realistic and deliverable plans for working 
within the funding we are likely to have available. 

R 

P
age 62



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

15 

CLIMATE 

Failure to limit global warming to 1.5°C, requiring 
global net human-caused emissions of carbon 
dioxide (CO2) to fall by about 45 percent from 2010 
levels by 2030, reaching ‘net zero’ by 2050 at the 
latest. This increases the risks to East Sussex of 
hotter, drier summers; changing rainfall patterns, 
with more intense rainfall episodes and longer 
periods without rainfall; milder winters; more frequent 
extremes in weather that are either prolonged or 
severe; and sea level rise with potential for 
increased storm surges. 

Climate change adaptation: we are following national adaptation advice, including working with partners 
on flood risk management plans, a heatwave plan and drought plans. 

Climate change mitigation: we are continuing to reduce the County Council’s own carbon footprint, 
which was cut by 56% between 2008-9 and 2018-19.   

The County Council declared a Climate Emergency in October 2019 and committed to achieve net zero 
carbon emissions from the County Council’s estate by 2050 or earlier. A route map to net zero is being 
developed and progress will be reported to County Council in May 2020. 

R 

1 

ROADS 

Wet winter weather, over recent years has caused 
significant damage to many of the county’s roads, 
adding to the backlog of maintenance in the County 
Council’s Asset Plan, and increasing the risk to the 
Council’s ability to stem the rate of deterioration and 
maintain road condition. 

Covid-19 could lead to an increase in the level of 
staff sickness, as well as the need for staff to self-
isolate/distance. It will lead to a change in our 
working approach and arrangements, even beyond 
the length of any Government imposed lockdown. 

The additional capital maintenance funding approved by Cabinet in recent years has enabled us to 
stabilise the rate of deterioration in the carriageway network and improve the condition of our principle 
road network. However, a large backlog of maintenance still exists and is addressed on a priority basis. 

The County Council’s asset management approach to highway maintenance is maintaining the overall 
condition of roads, despite recent year’s winter weather. However, severe winter weather continues to 
be a significant risk with the potential to have significant impact on the highway network. The recently 
approved five year capital programme for carriageways 2018/19 to 2022/23, and the six year additional 
capital programme for drainage and footways 2017/18 to 2022/23 provide the ability to continue to 
improve condition and build resilience into the network for future winter events. 

Additional DfT money from 2018/2019 has supported this approach. 

Remote working has been adopted where possible in response to Covid-19. We are still able to deliver 
works on the ground adhering to current working restrictions and the carriageway programme is 
continuing as normal. If working restrictions change, this might impact our ability to deliver. If staff illness 
increases for either our contractor, sub-contractors or suppliers, this might impact our ability to deliver. 

A 

P
age 63



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

7 

SCHOOLS 

Failure to manage the expected significant reduction 
in resources for school improvement from 2017/18 
and the potential impacts of changing government 
policy on education, leading to reduced outcomes for 
children, poor Ofsted reports and reputational 
damage 

• In September 2019 the Department published its refreshed Excellence for All strategy. The updated 
strategy outlines the shared vision, values and ambitions the local authority and our partners have for 
creating an excellent education system in East Sussex where no child or educational establishment is 
left behind. There is a sharper focus on the most disadvantaged and on how we will deliver 
improvement through the partnership structures in the county. 

• Work closely with schools to build a sustainable system across East Sussex, in order to ensure that 
the capacity and expertise is available to provide oversight of educational performance and to offer 
appropriate support and challenge where it is required. 

• Provide an opportunity for every school to be part of a local Education Improvement Partnership to 
support their ongoing improvement and for all partnerships to develop to the point where they provide a 
sustainable network through which all schools and other providers take responsibility for improvement in 
their local area.   

• Continue to develop commissioning model of school improvement including reviewing the level of 
trading by SLES to ascertain what is sustainable within reducing capacity and to identify core services 
that can be traded.  

• Continue to build relationships with academies and sponsors, including the Diocese of Chichester, 
ensure a dialogue about school performance, including data sharing. 

• Work with academies and maintained schools through the Education Improvement Partnerships to 
develop system leadership, school to school support and to broker partnerships to reduce pressure on 
SLES services. 

• Broker support to academies to address any performance concerns and investigate the feasibility of 
trading some LA school improvement services with all schools on a full cost recovery basis. 

• Where academies do not appear to be accessing appropriate support, bring this to the attention of the 
DfE, who may exercise their intervention powers.  

• Work with the Regional Schools Commissioner to ensure the work of the RSC and the LA is aligned 
and that schools have the support they need. 

A 

P
age 64



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

8 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

As a result of current austerity, the capital 
programme has been produced to support basic 
need only and as a result of this there is no resource 
for other investment that may benefit the County e.g. 
that may generate economic growth. Additionally, 
there is a risk, due to the complexity of formulas and 
factors that impact upon them, or changes in these, 
that the estimated Government Grants, which fund 
part of the programme, are significantly reduced. 
There is also a risk that the move from S106 
contributions to Community Infrastructure Levy will 
mean that Council has reduced funding from this 
source as bids have to be made to Districts and 
Boroughs.  Slippage continues to occur within the 
programme, which has an impact on the effective 
use of limited resources. 

Governance arrangements continue to be reviewed and developed with Property for the delivery of 
Schools Basic Need and capital property works in support of the robust programme delivery of the basic 
need programme. The Education Sub Board, which in part focuses on future need for schools places, 
continues to inform the Capital Strategic Asset Board of key risks and issues within the School Basic 
Need Programme. Regular scrutiny by the Capital Strategic Asset Board (CSAB), of programme and 
project profiles (both in year and across the life of the programme) occurs on a quarterly basis. 

The Board also proactively supports the seeking and management of all sources of capital funding, 
including; grants, S106, CIL and, Local Growth Fund monies. A cross department sub board has been 
set that oversees the process for bidding for CIL and to the use of S106 funds, work continues with 
Districts and Boroughs to maximise the Council’s receipt of these limited resources. The impact Covid-
19 has had on working arrangements has meant that some S106 and CIL monies anticipated to be 
collected and used in year were unable to be collected. This is only a delay in receipt and the funds are 
still available in support of the programme as a whole. 

A risk factor was introduced in 2019/20 to acknowledge and address the historic level of slippage in the 
capital programme, its impact on the financing of the capital programme, and therefore on treasury 
management activity. Following the creation of the 20 year capital strategy (2020/21 to 2040/41) and 
the enhanced rigour in the building of the 10 year capital programme (2019/20 to 2029/30), this factor 
has not been extended to future years. CSAB will continue to monitor slippage and recommend any 
change should it become necessary. Covid-19 is already impacting on the delivery of projects and 
programmes of work and as a result slippage will increase in 2020/21. 

A 

9 

WORKFORCE 

Stress and mental health are currently the top two 
reasons for sickness absence across the Council, 
potentially leading to reduced staff wellbeing, 
reduced service resilience, inability to deliver 
efficient service and / or reputational issues. 

The 2019/20 sickness absence year end outturn for the whole authority (excluding schools) is 8.48 days 
lost per FTE, a decrease of 2.9% since last year. 

Stress/mental health remains the primary reason for absence, increasing by 8.2% compared to 
2018/19. Interestingly, during that period whilst days lost due to Mental Health issues has increased by 
39.3%, those due to stress have fallen by 14.2. Sickness absence overall has seen a reduction which 
would indicate employees are now feeling able to disclose Mental Health as a reason for absence. 

•Almost 100 Mental Health First Aiders have been trained across the organisation and 52 interventions 
have taken place since November 2019 

•ESCC Campaign launched for World Mental Health Awareness Day on 10 October 2019  

•Employee and Managers Mental Health Guides have been produced alongside a supporting toolkit and 
dedicated resource intranet page 

•A dedicated yammer wellbeing campaign to support staff during COVID-19 was launched March 2020 
and is now in its 5th week 

•A new Stress Risk Assessment to encourage meaningful conversations between managers and 
employees and provide signposting will be launched next month 

A 

P
age 65



APPENDIX 7 

Strategic Risk Register – Q4 2019/20 

Ref Strategic Risks Risk Control / Response and Post Mitigation RAG score 

10 

RECRUITMENT 

Inability to attract high calibre candidates, leading to 
limited recruitment choices and therefore lack of the 
expertise, capacity, leadership and/or innovation 
required to deliver services and service 
transformation. 

Following CMTs consideration of our current workforce demographics and recruitment and retention 
‘hotspots’, two workstreams of ‘attracting and recruiting the future workforce’ and ‘leading the workforce’ 
are now being progressed. Specific proposals for action were due to be reported to CMT in March 2020 
but as a result of the Coronavirus response, this will now be delayed until summer/autumn 2020. 

A 

6 

LOCAL ECONOMIC GROWTH 

Failure to deliver local economic growth, and failure 
to maximise opportunities afforded by Government 
proposal to allocate Local Growth Funding to South 
East Local Enterprise Partnership, creating adverse 
reputational and financial impacts. 

The County Council and its partners have been successful in securing significant amounts of growth 
funding totalling £115m, via both the South East and Coast 2 Capital Local Enterprise Partnerships, to 
deliver a wide range of infrastructure projects in East Sussex. We have also secured outgoing EU 
funding for complementary economic development programmes supporting businesses to grow, 
including South East Business Boost (SEBB), LoCASE, SECCADS and inward investment services for 
the county. We have continued to bid for further EU funding on the above projects and have secured 
over £4m of investments to be delivered from April 2020 for a further 3 years. 

The County Council has worked with Wealden DC and developed an outline business case that has 
been submitted to the Major Road Network programme in May 2019, to secure funding for 
approximately £34.3m towards local transport interventions along the A22/A27 Growth Corridor. We are 
awaiting outcome.  

Government is working on a new Shared Prosperity Fund, which seeks to combine growth funding and 
outgoing EU funding into one, and as a consequence we are working with partners to develop a pipeline 
of projects to ensure we are well-placed to capitalise when the fund is released and calls for projects are 
issued. Furthermore, there are several new funds that are being bid to including Future High Streets, 
Stronger Towns Fund and European Social Fund and we have been actively working with partners in 
submitting proposals and await the outcomes. 

Government has instigated a review of LEPs across the country. A new legal company limited by 
guarantee and SELEP board has been appointed and we have been working on the development of a 
SELEP Local Industrial Strategy which is now to be submitted in Summer 2020. 

East Sussex have been successful in securing an additional £2.46m funding from the SELEP for two 
projects that will create new jobs and workspaces in Bexhill and provide a replacement for Exceat 
Bridge to improve connectivity and support housing growth. East Sussex have submitted projects for 
consideration in the Growing Places Fund (GPF Round 3) programme and we were expecting to know 
outcome in April 2020.  

However, due to the CV19 outbreak in early March 2020 this is having an impact on major funding 
decisions from Government, SELEP and ESCC as we focus priority on enabling businesses, employees 
and those unemployed recover from this economic and societal shock. This will affect our future RAG 
rating on growth and delays in delivery of schemes. 

G 

 

P
age 66



Report to: 
 
Date: 

Cabinet 
 
23 June 2020 
 

Report By: Chief Operating Officer 
 

Title of Report: Ashdown Forest Trust Fund 
 

Purpose of Report: To inform Cabinet of the movements on the Trust Fund during 
2019/20 and the closing position as at 31 March 2020. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is recommended to note the report and the Ashdown Forest’s Trust Income 
and Expenditure Account for 2019/20 and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020. 

  
 
1. Background 
 
1.1. The Ashdown Forest Trust, a registered charity, was set out by declaration of Trust in 

1988. East Sussex County Council is the trustee and agrees grants made to the 
Ashdown Forest Conservators, from the Ashdown Forest Trust Fund. 

 
2. Supporting Information  

 
2018/19 Accounts  

2.1. Subsequent to the 2018/19 accounts being approved, the independent Examination 
process has now been completed in accordance with Section 145 of the Charities Act 
2011. 

2.2. The Examiner’s report is attached as Appendix A. It does not identify any issues that 
require any further action by the Council as the trustees. 

2019/20 Accounts 

2.3. The Trust’s Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet are set out in the 
attached Appendix B. The Income and Expenditure Account shows an surplus in 
2019/20 of £4,872, as a result of no legal cost being incurred during the year. 

2.4. The main source of income to the Trust relates to the rent from the Royal Ashdown 
Golf Club at £70,000 per annum. The only other income this year was from bank 
interest. 

2.5. The expenditure mostly relates to the £65,100 grant paid to the Ashdown Forest 
Conservators. The remaining expenditure was for audit fees. 

2.6. The accumulative General Reserve totalled £158,202 at 31 March 2020. 

2.7. A formal annual report and statement of accounts will be compiled in accordance with 
the Charity Commission’s Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) by the end of 
January 2021, once the Independent Examiner report has been received. 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6



3. Conclusion and Recommendation 

3.1. The trust made an operating surplus of £4,872 during 2019/20. The General Reserve 
as at 31 March 2020 amounts to £158,202. This fund is available to finance 
expenditure which meets the Trust’s objectives. 

3.2. Cabinet is recommended to note the final accounts for the Ashdown Forest Trust. 

 

 

 

KEVIN FOSTER 
Chief Operating Officer 

 

Contact Officer: Andy Fowler 
Tel No. 01273 481774 
Email: andy.fowler@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS 
Councillors  Stogdon, Tidy, Galley and Whetstone 

 

 

 

 

Page 68

mailto:andy.fowler@eastsussex.gov.uk


Appendix A  

 

 
 

Page 69



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



Appendix B 

 

 

          
 
 

 ASHDOWN FOREST TRUST 
 

   

 
Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended 31 March 2020 

 

   

2018/19 Income 
2019/20 

 

      

£   £ 

(2500)  Fees -  

(70,000) Rent of Golf Course (70,000) 

(336) Bank Interest  (452) 

(72,836)   (70,452) 

      

      

  Less Expenditure   

2,500 Other - 

65,100  Conservators of Ashdown Forest - Grants 65,100  

5,840  Fees including VAT 480  

604  (Surplus)/Deficit (4,872)  

      

      

 

 

 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 

 

   2018/19   2019/20 

      

       £          £ 

      

1,200,000  Fixed Assets: Land and Buildings 1,200,000  

      

  Current Assets:   

154,283     Cash at Bank 158,783  

      

  Current Liabilities:   

(852)   Sundry creditors (480) 

      

1,353,431    1,358,303  

      

  Representing:   

      

  Reserves   

1,200,100    Endowment Fund 1,200,100  

153,331    General Reserve 158,203  

      

1,353,431    1,358,303  

      

      

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: Cabinet 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

23 June 2020 

By: Chief Operating Officer 
 

Title: Modernising Back Office Systems (MBOS) - Procurement to upgrade 
or replace Finance, HR, Payroll and Procurement systems  
 

Purpose: To approve the outline business case for progressing procurement 
activities to upgrade or replace the council’s existing corporate IT 
systems including business critical Finance, HR, Payroll and 
Procurement  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS Cabinet is recommended to: 

1. approve the procurement of a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) system to replace 
the current SAP solution, and an implementation partner to support the 
configuration and roll-out of the new system; 
 

2. delegate authority to the Lead Member for Resources to consider the response 
to the procurement exercise and to award a contract; and 
 

3. note the additional information on indicative costs and benefits contained in a 
separate report later on the agenda (Part II). 

 

 

1 Background 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform a decision based on indicative costs and 

benefits to progress a procurement exercise to upgrade or replace the council’s existing 

corporate system, which manages the organisation’s business critical finance, HR, Payroll 

and Purchasing processes. 

1.2 The current systems which are known as SAP will no longer be supported by the 

supplier beyond 2025 and the existing server hardware is now beginning to show its age 

with more performance issues arising. The current systems will also not effectively support 

the Council’s priority outcomes and specifically making effective use of resources.  

1.3 A programme board has been set up - Modernising Back Office Systems (MBOS) – 

to undertake the scoping and defining of system requirements. In the first instance, the 

systems must meet statutory accounting and HR regulatory frameworks, for example, paying 

staff and providers, recording VAT and Pay As You Earn (PAYE) and enabling the annual 

statement of accounts to be produced. However, in addition, the new systems will seek to 

prioritise supporting a more agile and flexible workforce, providing easy access to data and 

monitoring information and insight to support effective management decision making. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



2 Supporting information 

2.1 An appraisal of the strategic business drivers outlined in Appendix 1 has been 

undertaken to assess the options available to East Sussex County Council (ESCC) and to 

determine which should be progressed to the outline business case stage. The options 

appraisal involved engagement with senior stakeholders from across Finance, HR, Payroll, 

Procurement, Business Operations and IT&D, all of whom are represented on the MBOS 

Programme Board, and confirmed that there is alignment across stakeholders on both the 

need to progress this programme as a priority in the short term and on the need for the 

improvements that it should deliver.  

2.2 A summary of the Strategic Case including details of the strategic business drivers, 

strategic alignment and business outcomes used in the options appraisal are outlined in 

Appendix 1.  

Summary of Options  

2.3 The Options Appraisal, offers four practical options for ESCC to upgrade or replace 

its existing SAP systems. With all options ESCC will require an implementation partner. The 

implementation partner brings knowledge of the system that ESCC will not have in-house 

but will require if it is to implement at ‘fit for purpose’ system within agreed timescales and 

budget. A procurement of a large system is usually made through an implementation 

partner, therefore ESCC will be procuring a SaaS system and an implementation partner. In 

summary, the options and associated conclusions for each were: 

Option 1: SAP S/4HANA implementation. Moving to the next generation SAP solution, 

which is cloud-based S/4HANA, would include a complete re-engineering and simplification 

of ESCC’s in-scope processes. 

Option 2: ERP implementation. Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) is a system software 

product that allows an organisation to use integrated applications across a range of services, 

including Finance, HR, Payments, Payroll and Procurement. This option considered the 

implementation of an ERP system and an implementation partner 

Option 3: Alternative Best of Breed. A complete re-design of ESCC’s current integrated SAP 

systems to include separate best fit systems for each service area: Finance, HR, 

Procurement. 

Option 4: Do nothing and utilise the current SAP system with current in-house team. 

2.4 Through consideration of these options the MBOS Programme Board agreed to: 

 Not consider Option 4 “Do nothing”.  This is because doing nothing is not considered 

to be a realistic option since the current SAP systems will not be supported by SAP 

beyond 2025 and it is not fit for purpose in support future service requirements. In 

addition, there is increased risk of hardware failure and the system software will 

become out of date. 

 Consider Option 1, the implementation of SAP S/4HANA, however, recognising that a 

single source procurement would not provide suitable value for money due to a lack 

of market testing and open procurement nor give the market an opportunity to 

demonstrate that ESCC requirements will be appropriately met. 

Page 74



 Options 2 & 3 are progressed and merged to enable ESCC to have the widest 

possible selection of systems through its procurement and therefore the best 

opportunity to achieve value for money and delivery of ESCC’s core requirements. 

2.5   It is recommended that a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) product is procured, rather than 

an in-house solution, to ensure that the new system is future proofed and that ESCC is able 

to benefit from the release of new technologies via ongoing software updates, avoiding the 

need for another major system upgrade with the associated costs and disruption in a few 

years’ time.  

2.6   SaaS is a software licencing and delivery model in which the system software is 

licensed on a subscription basis and is centrally hosted by the provided organisation. 

Consequently, any replacement system would not be held by ESCC, as per the current SAP 

arrangement. SaaS is the focus for innovation and investment for major system providers 

and is specifically designed to meet the needs of an agile and mobile workforce, enhancing 

self-service business processes and significantly improving the use of management 

information.  

Procurement 

2.7 The Outline Business Case seeks approval to progress appropriate procurement 

activities based on outline costs and benefits identified through soft market testing and 

included as additional information in a separate report later in the agenda (Part II). ESCC 

considered both Enterprise Resource Planning systems (these are multifunctional systems 

that cover all the main functions of a Council and share a single database) and Best of 

Breed systems (these are specialist systems that focus on singular functions such as 

Finance or HR and will need to be integrated) The following two options for next steps have 

been evaluated with further information contained in Appendix 1. 

 Procurement Option 1: ERP/Best of Breed SaaS solution, including implementation 

partner. 

 Procurement Option 2: Direct award for SAP S/4HANA SaaS Implementation for SAP 

services, procurement of implementation partner. 

2.8 The recommendation based on the procurement options appraisal findings is to 

progress Procurement Option 1 - An ERP/ Best of Breed SaaS procurement to enable 

ESCC to fully evaluate its options and drive best value for money through market 

competition.  

2.9 Option 2 is not recommended for the following reasons. Under Procurement Option 2 

a lack of market competition is unlikely to deliver best value for money and mean ESCC is 

unable to fully evaluate its solution options and ensure best fit with its business and technical 

requirements. Also, a direct award to SAP is unlikely to be compliant with the public sector 

procurement regulations, unless a suitable framework could be identified.  However, as 

stated above, this would limit market competition 

 
2.10 The current known solution scope of this project, the risks and risk management, 

dependencies and key assumptions associated with these proposals to procure a new 

system are described in Appendix 1 and will be further validated and refined during the 

requirements and procurement stage. Following completion of the procurement activities this 

Page 75



business case will be updated based on the confirmed scope and costs for final approval 

before contract award and implementation. 

3.     Finance and Value for Money  

 

3.1   The costs information in this outline business case are indicative only and are included 

in the additional information contained in a separate report in Part II of the agenda. The 

scope of this report is to seek a decision to progress the procurement stage of the 

programme only. 

3.2   The high-level benefits associated with the implementation of a new system are in the 

table below. The benefits will be developed as part of the mobilisation and included within 

the benefits realisation planning based on the preferred supplier system selected: 

 

Type of Benefit Detail 

Financial Benefit  Avoided estimated share of £2m capital cost of upgrading the 
existing SAP hardware, which would be required for an in-
house hosted solution. 

 Improved processes through automation and self-service, and 
changes to ways of working will create capacity efficiencies 
and potentially reduce FtE required to manage business 
processes. 

 Improved technologies are likely to reduce the number of 
business support staff required to support a SaaS-based 
technology. 

Non-Financial Benefits  Ability to procure a fit-for-purpose solution that meets ESCC’s 
requirements. 

 Implementation of manager and employee self-service will 
improve processes and reduce inefficient activities for ESCC 
staff. 

 Increased flexibility of a subscription licence fee arrangement, 
which may be flexed depending on the number of users. 

 Planned upgrades will be undertaken in the SaaS Cloud, 
future proofing the solution with limited disruption to business. 

 Improved access channels will increase the ability to interact 
with the ERP system remotely. 

 SaaS technologies allow for improved integration between the 
ERP and other databases, enabling easier integration of 
financial and non-financial data. 

 

 

4.  Next steps and Timescales 

 
4.1 The detailed timeline for implementation will be developed during mobilisation of the 

implementation phase with the chosen Implementation Partner and will depend on the 

chosen new solution. Whichever solution is selected, the aim will be to take a phased 

approach to the deployment of the system in order to enable greater flexibility and reduce 

the risk associated with attempting go-live for all parts of the system on a single date.  

Page 76



4.2 To reduce risks of programme slippage there are several key tasks that the 

programme can initiate early. These tasks will better inform the invitation to tender and the 

selection process. The early work will improve the discussions with potential vendors and 

reduce the risk of selected software not meeting all the business requirements.  

4.3 The tasks to be considered for early start are: 

 Data verification and cleansing; 

 Target enterprise architecture for process, data, application, interfaces and 
integration; 

 Reporting verification; 

 Business and process requirements; 

 Develop and update workforce strategy to align with future state systems 
functionality. 

 

4.4  The table below sets out the key milestones associated with proposal to procure and 

implement a new system: 

 

No. Milestone Completion Date 

1 ERP Replacement Project Initiation Document – seeking 
approval to proceed form CMT 

Oct 19 - 
Complete 

2 ERP Replacement procurement strategy – seeking approval 
for route to market 

Oct 19 - 
Complete 

3 Outline business case final approval for software vendor 
and implementation partner 

June 20 

4 OJEU Notice published July 20 

5 Invitation to Tender issued July 20 

6 Contract signed Dec 20 

7 ERP Replacement implementation team mobilisation Dec 20 

8 Implementation (Phases prepare; explore; realise; deploy) Nov 20 – Sept 22 

9 Go Live (Phase run) Dec 22 

10 Retire current SAP and associated systems after dual 
running 

April 23 
onwards 

 

 

Page 77



5.         Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

 

5.1 The purpose of this report is to inform a decision based on indicative costs and 
benefits to progress a procurement exercise to upgrade or replace the Council’s existing 
corporate system, which manages the organisation’s business critical finance, HR, Payroll 
and Purchasing processes. 

5.2 Cabinet is recommended to note the outline business case and to agree to progress a 
procurement based on Procurement Option 1 above for a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) 
system.  It is recommended that the response to the tendering process be reported to the 
Lead Member for Resources and authority be delegated to him to award a contract. 

 

KEVIN FOSTER 
Chief Operating Officer 

Contact Officer: Richard Lundie-Sadd 

Tel. No. 07800 876986 
Email: Richard.lundie-sadd@eastsussex.gov.uk 

Page 78



 

Appendix 1 

Outline Business Case – Further information 

1. Strategic Case 

The key strategic business drivers to move from the existing SAP system to a new system 

include the following: 

1.1 Business Continuity Imperative - the current SAP systems were implemented in 

2004, are out-of-date and will no longer be supported by SAP beyond 2025. The existing 

hardware was procured in 2011, with a projected lifespan of 5 years and is now starting to 

underperform, thus increasing the risk of system failure with serious consequences for 

ESCC. The hardware is also on more costly extended support, with costs increasing every 

year. 

1.2  Efficiency Agenda – there is a drive to deliver efficiencies through improving 
processes, removing unnecessary bureaucracy and enabling greater staff self-sufficiency 
through mobile digital self-service for day-to-day transactional services, releasing time in 
corporate support functions to focus on higher value, more strategic support as business 
partners to front-line services. 

1.3 Flexible Working – with the advent of COVID-19 and the impact this has had on 

the office working environment, there is a need to support and enable the move to more 

flexible working across ESCC by providing mobile self-service access to transactional 

corporate processes.  

1.4 Suppliers & Customers - are requesting more and more to be able to self-service 
and self-access services thereby moving away from the more traditional service engagement 
and mediation approach. 

1.5 A more modern and intuitive user experience – There is a demand for a modern 

system with intuitive self-service capability. The strategic drive for agile working from 

different locations requires up-to-date and intuitive digital self-service processes and 

technologies to enable managers and staff to access information and administrative 

processes easily on the move. 

1.6 Accurate and timely data – There is a need for one version of the truth and data 

that is simple to extract, enabled by seamless integration between line of business systems 

and the corporate system. Finance, HR and Procurement currently undertake some data 

analysis using various tools, but this is time consuming and limited as information is 

recorded on disparate systems which aren’t integrated. In addition, the existing HR and 

Finance systems are not effectively integrated meaning that there are commonly 

mismatches between HR data and budget data. 

1.7 Flexible working - there is a need to support and enable the move to more flexible 

working across ESCC by providing mobile digital self-service for staff to access transactional 

corporate processes. 

Page 79



Strategic Alignment 

1.8 The Council has four overarching priority outcomes:  

 driving sustainable economic growth; 

 keeping vulnerable people safe;  

 helping people help themselves; and  

 making best use of resources.  

 

1.9 Making best use of resources is the gateway priority through which any activity and 

accompanying resources must pass. The remaining three priority outcomes guide activities, 

direct resources and are reflected in ESCC Council Plan activities and targets. As resources 

tighten, ESCC will need to have an ever-sharper focus on these priority areas, explore 

clearly the outcomes ESCC wishes to achieve, and monitor success in delivering these 

outcomes for the county’s residents, communities and businesses 

1.10 This programme of work and associated procurement contributes to the ‘Making best 

use of resources’ priority, which underpins all ESCC activities and is a key measure of 

success for priority outcomes. It applies to all the resources available for East Sussex, not 

only within the Council, but across the public sector, voluntary and community sector and 

private partners, and within local communities. ESCC will work as a single unified 

organisation to deliver our priorities; ensuring high quality, streamlined services are 

commissioned and developed in partnership; working to reduce demand for services and 

focusing on our residents and communities. The key design principles and outcomes set out 

by the MBOS Programme Board, support and enable ESCC to deliver on its gateway priority 

and support in parts the outcome priorities. 

Business Outcomes 

1.11 More modern, intuitive and efficient systems and processes are required to deliver 

the MBOS Programme Board’s ambition and desired future ways of working. In summary, 

the programme aims to deliver a new system which achieves the following high-level 

outcomes: 

 Efficiency – Eliminate repetitive processes and greatly reduce the need to manually 

enter information. The system will also streamline business processes and make it 

easier and more efficient to collect data, no matter what service a user is working in. 

 Scalability – To have the ability to add new functions as the scale of service delivery 

changes over time.  

 Cost Savings – With real-time, one source, accurate information the future solution 

will reduce administrative and operations costs. This will enable services to 

proactively manage operations, prevents disruptions and delays, breaks up 

information logjams and helps users make decisions more quickly.  

 Flexibility – Modern systems are robust, flexible, and configurable. The future 

solution will be tailored to the unique needs of services.  The business will be able to 

adapt to the ever-changing needs of a changing population and subsequent format of 

service delivery.  

 Security – An improved new system will enhance the accuracy, consistency, and 

security of data, all through built-in resources and firewalls. If there are any 

restrictions on data, it can then also be enhanced by managers of the solution.  

Page 80



 User experience – The new system will enable ESCC to save time on transactional 

activity and spend more time on developing insights into user, customer, supplier & 

partner needs and performance.  Superfluous processes will become automated, 

allowing users have more time to work on other pressing projects and tasks. They’ll 

also be able to work easier since the solution will be designed for ease-of-use. 

 Workforce competencies – New systems with increased automation, self-service 

and data analytical & interrogation tools will start to change the competency 

requirements of ESCC the organisation as it moves from a transaction base to data 

intelligence led organisation. 

 Integrated access to information – The new system will ensure there are no more 
issues with being unable to access data spread across separate databases; all data 
will be able to be accessed through a single Reporting and Business Intelligence 
solution which will be integrated across all platforms, keeping data consistent, 
accurate, and unique. This will enable ESCC to know our customer, their needs, and 
our service performance, all in one place. 

2. Procurement Option Analysis and Appraisal 

2.1 The following two procurement options for next steps are evaluated here and the full 

financial and non-financial benefits and costs for the recommended option are shown in the 

next section and in the additional information contained in a separate report later on the 

agenda (Part II).  

2.2 The option of ‘Do Nothing’ – stay with the current SAP system was considered by the 

MBOS Board and decided it was not an option for consideration because the SAP 

application will be out of support in 2025 and ESCC cannot run the business risk of 

managing an unsupported accountancy system. ESCC must procure a replacement or it is 

placing its financial governance at risk. 

Procurement Options Considered 

No. Option Description 

1 

Vendor neutral ERP/Best 
of Breed SaaS 
Procurement including 
integration tool. 

ESCC-only OJEU process to procure both the SaaS 
subscription licences and Implementation Partner 
services that best meet ESCC requirements and drive 
best value for money. 
 
ESCC-only framework process to procure the 
integration tool to facilitate integration with business 
systems. 
 

2 
Direct award for SAP 
S/4HANA SaaS including 
integration tool 

Direct award to SAP for S/4HANA SaaS subscription 
licences and procurement of Implementation Partner 
services via a procurement framework. 
 
 

 

Procurement Option 1 (A&B) – Vendor neutral ERP/Best of Breed SaaS 
Procurement  

Consideration Description 

Page 81



Consideration Description 

Benefits 

 Drives best value for money through market competition. 

 Improved understanding and comparison of qualitative improvements 
available from each solution option. 

 Improved understanding and comparison of suppliers’ implementation 
approaches to best inform planning to minimise disruption for ESCC. 

 Improved understanding and fit with ESCC’s business & technical 
requirements. 

 Public SaaS removes requirement for in-house infrastructure and 
associated costs. 

 Flexibility of SaaS subscription licences enables improved scalability 
(ability to flex subscriptions to accommodate changes in requirements). 

 Future-proofed. ESCC will be able to benefit from the release of new 
SaaS technologies via ongoing software updates. 

 Potential opportunity for ESCC support staff to broaden their skills and 
experience and learn a new system other than SAP. 

Dis-benefits 

 Business disruption. 

 Procurement challenges to evaluate Tier 1 versus Tier 2 verses ‘Best 
of Breed’ solutions – cost versus complexity. 

 Increased cost and time required for ESCC to run a restricted OJEU 
process to ensure adequate contract duration. 
 

If ESCC changes to an alternative system: 

 Increased support costs as existing SAP support 50% discount will end 
in December 2020 and costs will continue to be incurred during 
implementation. 

 Loss of ESCC’s SAP knowledge, which has been built up over 15 
years. 

 Increased business change and training costs. 
 

Risks 

 Possible additional unknown hidden costs that may be incurred from 
switching from SAP to an alternative system, such as data migration, 
archiving and historic information comparisons. 

 If a non-SAP solution is selected, current knowledge held in ESCC 
Support Staff will be lost.  

 Change of working practices will reduce productivity during 
implementation. 

 Will require increased network capacity to send and receive data 
across the internet. 

Procurement Option 2 – Direct award for SAP S/4HANA SaaS  

Consideration Description 

Benefits 

 Less complex procurement process which is limited to the selection of 
an Implementation Partner, potentially from a framework. 

 Retention and further development of ESCC’s existing knowledge of 
SAP. 

 Lower training requirement for the business and support staff. 

 Future-proofed. ESCC will be able to benefit from the release of new 
SaaS technologies via ongoing software updates. 

 SaaS infrastructure removes requirement for in-house infrastructure. 

 Enables use of latest SAP technologies to implement improvements in 
accuracy and timeliness of information. 

Page 82



Consideration Description 

 Ability to re-purpose current licences to offset against SaaS licence 
value. 

 Lower risk of additional unknown hidden costs compared to switching 
from SAP to an alternative system.  

Dis-benefits 

 Limits choice of implementation partners to framework agreements. 

 Lack of market competition unlikely to deliver best value for money. 

 Lack of understanding and comparison of qualitative improvements 
available from other solutions (including available latest SaaS 
technologies). 

 Lack of understanding and comparison of suppliers’ implementation 
approaches for different solutions to best inform planning to minimise 
disruption for ESCC. 

 Less clear and validated fit between this solution and ESCC’s business 
& technical requirements due to a lack of comparison with alternatives. 

Risks 

 Potentially less value for money deal on software costs as ESCC will 
not benefit from market competition. 

 Loss of an opportunity to validate ESCC’s requirements and to select a 
best-fit system at a time when this option will involve a complete 
change of system to S/4HANA. 

 Will require increased network capacity to send and receive data 
across the internet. 

 Procurement may be challenged.  

 

 

3. Scope of the Project 
 
3.1 Existing functional footprint - The scope of this project is to replace the current 
systems provided by SAP as set out in the table below: 
 
 

 

Function In-scope To be confirmed Out-of-scope 

Finance 

1. Record to Report 
2. Order to Cash 
3. Purchase to Pay 
4. Budget Planning 

(Budget & Forecasting) 
5. Projects 
6. Asset Accounting 
7. FMS – Schools 
8. Capital accounting 

9. Treasury 
Management 

 

Procurement 

10. Purchase to Pay 
11. Contract Management 

12. Sourcing 

  

HR & Payroll 

13. Hire to Retire 
14. Employee self-service 
15. Manager self-service 
16. Recruitment 
17. Expenses 
18. Payroll 

19. Organisation 
Structure 

20. Learning 
Management 

 

Page 83



Function In-scope To be confirmed Out-of-scope 

Property 
21. None 22. Plant 

Maintenance 
23. Fleet 

Management 

Business 
Intelligence 

24. Data Analytics 
25. Dashboards 

  

Technology 
enablers 

Equivalent functionality to the 
following SAP features: 

26. Solution Manager 
27. Systems Interfaces 
28. Business Process 

Integration 
29. Workflow 
30. Electronic Forms 
31. Integration to business 

systems 
32. Multichannel Access 
33. Mobile Working 
34. Security & 

Authentication 

  

 

3.2 New functionality – To be agreed through the business requirements activity. The 

existing SAP contract management module is currently not licenced. A potential requirement 

for improved contract management, including mid to lower level spend, has been identified 

to inform better procurement decision making and drive better value for money. 

3.3 Other related software tools – ESCC currently have other software products that 

are used in conjunction with the SAP system (e.g. Winshuttle which is in operation in 

Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable). A review of the functionality provided by these 

solutions will be completed to inform the specification for the new system. It is proposed that 

ESCC will procure, through an existing framework, an integration tool that will ensure 

effective integration of the replacement system with existing business solutions. 

3.4 Users - The full scope of users of the existing SAP system, including external 

customers of Business Operations.  

3.5 Interfaces - Implementing the existing SAP integrations and known future services’ 

integrations. 

3.6 SAP hardware - The existing hardware has reached end-of-life and is on expensive 

extended support, with costs increasing every year. This programme 

includes implementing a future solution, whether SaaS or in-house, to host the upgraded or 

replaced SAP system for ESCC. 

3.7 Data archiving - There are currently sixteen (16) years of data held in the existing 

system. An approach for archiving past data will need to be agreed and implemented as part 

of the solution. The new system including an Archiving solution will need to be GDPR 

compliant. 

3.8 Surrey County Council SAP Hardware – The Surrey County Council (SCC) SAP 

system is currently hosted on the same hardware as ESCC and SCC faces the same 

technical imperative to upgrade their hosting arrangement. This work for SCC is out-of-

scope for this programme.  

Page 84



4. Risks and Risk Management 
 

4.1 The table below sets out some of the risks associated with the proposals to procure a 

new system: 

 

 
 

 

 

5.      Dependencies 
 

5.1   The table below sets out the key dependencies associated with the proposals to 

procure a new system: 

 

No. Dependency Description 

1 Resource capacity 
and availability 

• Appropriate resourcing arrangements are required in the 
corporate teams to be able to meet the required time 
commitment to deliver the programme. This must include 
backfill but also knowledge transfer to develop 
the capacity in advance of the programme commencing. 
Services absorb the additional capacity demand to provide 

 

No. Risk (There is a risk…) Mitigating Actions 

   

1 …that there is an unclear strategic ambition for 
the programme, impacting the ability to gain 
consensus and ensure buy-in for a preferred 
direction of travel 

Strong engagement as part of developing the 
options appraisal, business case & 
procurement with senior leadership and the 
impacted business stakeholders 

2 …of the existing SAP hardware failing, 
increasing the risk of system failure with serious 
business continuity issues.  

Implementation of a SaaS solution removes 
this risk for the Council. Mitigation during 
implementation period of new system to be 
managed by IT&D as part of business as 
usual. 

3 …that dependencies on integration with 
Departments systems are not effectively 
identified and included within scope, impacting 
the delivery of end-to-end processes with 
directorates and benefits realisation 

Focus on ensuring all integration 
requirements are identified 
and included. Departments representatives 
keep abreast of directorate initiatives 
status to ensure dependencies are 
effectively managed  

4 …that there is a capacity issue in ESCC to be 
able to meet their required time commitment to 
deliver the programme. 

Careful transition planning & management 
including backfill to free-up staff time to focus 
on the programme. 

5 …that a move to a subscription payment model 
is not financially viable for the Council if the 
required revenue budget is unavailable 

Indicative capital and revenue costs to be 
shared with Finance at the outline business 
case stage. Finance Business Partner 
involvement to ensure early inclusion of 
figures in budget planning. 

6 …that there will be a drop in the level of service 
for ESCC and other customers during the 
implementation and early life of the new system 

Effective business change management and 
communication with customers to manage 
expectations throughout delivery of the 
programme 

Page 85



cost free capacity to the programme 

 

2 IT&D capacity and 
availability 

• Appropriate IT technical capacity is provided to the 
programme in a timely manner according to the agreed 
implementation plans  

3 Availability of 
required funding 
(revenue & capital) 

• Availability of required funding to deliver the preferred 
solution, including required revenue and capital budget split 
(based on whether SAAS or licence ownership approach). 
The current SAP revenue budget has been reduced based 
on a 50% discount of SAP support and maintenance costs, 
which will end in 2020. 

4 SAP support 
availability 

• The current SAP support team provide the required 
programme resources in a timely manner according to the 
agreed implementation plan. 

 

 

6.  Assumptions 
 

6.1 The table below sets out the key assumptions associated with the proposals to procure a 

new system: 

 

No. Assumption Description 

1 Networking 
costs 

Of the existing costs, there will be an increased cost for networking 
due to the volume of data being transferred to and from the cloud. 

2 SAP in-house 
costs 

Several current costs will no longer be required, as they will be 
replaced by the SaaS licence fees. These include Energy & 
facilities, Server Hardware Maintenance, Virtual Server 
Maintenance, Storage Area Network, Software Maintenance & SP 
Backup infrastructure support costs.  

3 SAP Software 
Maintenance  

It is assumed that the cost for SAP Software Maintenance will rise 
from £350k to £500k in 2021/22  

4 Business 
Support Team 

No saving has been assumed as efficiencies once a SaaS solution 
is in place 

5 Related SAP 
Software 

The following existing SAP-specific software will not be required 
once the new solution has been implemented: 

 Intelicorp 

 Winshuttle 

 Arch 

 Asperia 

 SNP 

6 Supplier 
Implementation 
Costs 

These are based on soft market testing with SAP; Oracle; Unit4; 
Workday; Advances & Midlands & Microsoft.  

7 ESCC 
Implementation 

A detailed resource profile for the implementation period has been 
created, and roles allocated to either Backfill, external agency or 

Page 86



No. Assumption Description 

Costs external consulting resources.   

 

The assumption is that most internal resources are provided at no 
cost. 

 

If internal costs are allocated to the programme an additional £1m 
will need to be added to the internal implementation costs. 

 

8 Potential 
Operational 
Savings 

No operational savings will be identified until a preferred supplier 
has been selected 

9 Potential 
Efficiency 
Savings 

Through the implementation of improved processes and increased 
manager, employee, customer and supplier self-service, an 
assumption has been made as to the level of savings that could be 
made from those significant users of the current SAP system.  
However, the realisation of these savings will be determined by 
ESCC’s appetite to undertake further transformational change, over 
and above recent initiatives.  

The working assumption is that it is 1% efficiency saving across the 
organisation. 

10 Solutions 
Assessed 

Cost of solutions are based on soft market testing with SAP; 
Oracle; Unit4; Workday; Advances & Midlands & Microsoft. 

11 Capital Costs It is assumed that the Capital Costs include the cost of 
implementation plus hardware for the relevant options.  

13 Payback 
Period 

This is the time taken for cumulative savings to exceed the total 
Capital Costs 

14 Existing SAP 
costs 

It is assumed that the following costs will be required for one-year 
post implementation to ensure continuity and access to the existing 
system and data: 

 Energy and Facilities 

 Server Hardware Maintenance 

 Virtual Server Maintenance 

 Storage Area Network 

 SAP Backup Infrastructure 

15 Testing Tools To be included in the implementation costs of the implementation 
partner. 

 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 June 2020
	5 Council Monitoring 2019/20 - End of Year
	6 Ashdown Forest Trust 2019/20
	7 Modernising Back Office Systems
	11 Modernising Back Office Systems

